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Contents Elecon EPC Projects Ltd. is a subsidiary of Elecon 
Engineering Company Limited. Strategically formed, we 
deal with the core material handling equipment product 
range through engineering expertise. We are one of the 
largest Material Handling Equipment manufacturing 
companies in India with in-house design, manufacturing, 
fabrication, component manufacturing and support 
services in a vertically integrated model.
We are the first company in India to have manufactured 
sophisticated equipment for Bulk Material Handling and 
have their products and solutions deployed in almost 
every industrial sector in India. Our product range 
includes design, engineering, manufacturing, supply, 
erection and commissioning of:

•	 Wagon	tipplers/Side	arm	charger

•	 Bucket	wheel	stacker/reclaimers

•	 Barrel-type	blender	reclaimers

•	 Fertilizer	reclaiming	scrapers

•	 Limestone	pre-homogenizing	and	blending	plants

•	 Single	 and	 twin	 bucket	 wheel	 bridge-type 
 reclaimers

•	 Crushers	and	Feeders

•	 Engineered	products	(bagging	plant,	magnetic		 	
	 equipment,	truck/wagon	loaders	)

•	 Crawler-mounted	trippers

•	 Stationary	and	shift-able	conveying	systems	for		 	
 open cast lignite mines

•	 Integrated	coal	handling	plants	for	power	stations

•	 Underground	mining	conveyors

•	 Specialized	conveying	systems

•	 Open	cast	conveying	systems

Elecon EPC delivers engineering, procurement, 
construction	 (EPC),	 and	 project	 management	 to	
government and private sector clients in diverse 
industries	globally.	For	more	than	six	(6)	decades,	clients	
have depended on Elecon as their company of choice 
to undertake challenging projects, many of which are 
at remote locations across the world. Clients depend on 
our engineering expertise and our skilled workforce to 
deliver projects safely, on schedule, within budgets, and 
with high quality standards.

With leading-edge manufacturing facility and a strong 
and diversified product portfolio, the company is 
amongst the key manufacturer of products for industries 
like Power, Cement, Mining, Chemical, Steel, Port and 
Fertilizer.

ELECON EPC AT A GLANCE
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Delayed Power Projects have severely affected the cash flow and had its effect on our Material Handling 
business as well.The market conditions are getting better but still would take some more time to fully 
recover from the hit it took. Our project execution has been good this year and we have successfully 
commissioned projects that are redefining the industry benchmarks. Strategic focus shift to service 
and	product	base	contracts	will	help	us	capitalize	on	our	company	strength	going	forward.

Prashant Amin   - Director

Material handling business by way of its inherent characteristics is reliant on performance of industry 
and on this front, there is not much of change which has happened in fiscal 2016. We also had a 
challenging year for the company with delays in execution of key projects at hand. While Government 
is taking right steps to address challenges of core sectors, we believe the ground level situation is 
taking more than usual time to recover. In order to ensure financial discipline and working capital, 
we have deliberately opted for business which are more specific on products rather than complete 
projects. Moving to the future as we envisage to merge with our parent company- Elecon Engineering 
Company Ltd., we are foreseeing significant improvement in profitability and operating parameters for 
the material handling business.

Rajat Jain   - Chief Financial Officer

Given the market conditions the Company had a decent 2015-16. There is a dearth of new big projects 
in the market which hindered us to an extent. A strong administrative push from the government is 
opening up the markets again and we are beginning to see signs of revival in major core sectors. We 
being supplier of choice for core sector industries are happy to see these developments. 

We	have	successfully	commissioned	two	specialized	conveying	projects	in	2015-16	and	have	excelled	
as a Company that can handle the toughest of EPC challenges. First project is for 7.5 km long pipe 
conveying system which is one of the longest in the world at Manikgarh Cement and the second one is 
5 km long downhill conveying system for NMDC-KIOP at Donimalai. Our push in operational excellence, 
a strong order book, the merger of two of our entities and the signs of revival shown by the economy 
makes us look optimistically towards 2016-17. 

Arvind Shore   - Chief Executive Officer

2016 has been a tough year for the Material Handling Industry. While there is some movement in the 
industry demand, the order inflow has been a trickle largely on account of execution of challenges at 
the customers end.  We believe the trend is likely to continue till the new initiatives result in execution 
at the ground level. As a counter measure, we have tweaked our strategy with increased focus on the 
product business where we are seeing more value in the period to come. 

We are fairly confident that the upcoming years would see economic trend favorable for the sector 
and with our strengths and competence, we are well poised to explore opportunities that come 
to us through the industry. We are also strategically looking at aligning our strengths with Elecon 
Engineering Co. Ltd. through possible merger and we believe that the transaction should offer a lot of 
combined synergies for profitable growth. 

Prayasvin Patel   - President	(Operations)

Management Insight
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Our over 60 years of experience helps us in successful execution of even 
the most challenging projects within time and budgets. We have many 
laurels to our credit and have constantly transformed the EPC sector in 
India. This one of its kind regenerative single flight downhill conveyor 
with	horizontal	and	vertical	curves	again	raises	the	bar.	
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STRENGTHS

At Elecon EPC Projects Limited, we have a state of the 
art manufacturing facility spanning 1,17,000 sq. meters, 
equipped with new generation CNC and NC machines tools 
and equipment for manufacturing, quality control and 
testing. Our superior manufacturing infrastructure coupled 
with our highly skilled and experienced workforce ensures 
that our products and solutions are robust and dependable 
for years to come.

We, being the pioneer in the industry are always on the 
lookout for new developments, expansion of our product 
range and continuous improvement of our current offerings. 
Some of our new advancements include pipe conveyors, 
high speed rollers as well as, yard management and manless 
machine operation.

ACHIEVEMENTS

•	 Successfully	 commissioned	 5	 kms	 long	 and	 2000	TPH	
capacity downhill conveyor system, a highly complex and 
challenging project because of its topography, for NMDC-
KIOP at Donimalai, Bellary district of Karnataka. 

•	 Successfully	completed	project	for	pipe	conveyor	of	7.5	
km and 1500 TPH capacity, one of the longest conveyors in 
the world for Manikgarh Cement.

•	 Only	 company	 in	 India	 successful	 in	 getting	 RDSO	
approval in compliance with G-33 Rev-I for C-type wagon 
tippler at Wonder Cement and Rota Side wagon tippler at 
Haldia Energy Ltd.

•	 Designed	 and	 manufactured	 largest	 barrel	 reclaimer	
in India having diameter 6.58m and span of 40m for TISCO, 
Jamshedpur. 

CNC Heavy Duty Lathe

Strengths, Achievements &
Growth Drivers

Skid	Mounted	Semi	Mobile	Crushing	Unit



Sales Industrywise
(From	1st April, 2015 to 31st March,	2016)

Orderbook Industrywise
(From	1st April, 2015 to 31st March,	2016)

Pending Orders Industrywise
(As	on	31st March,	2016)

Power 
59.34%

Power 87.74%

Mining 6.13%

Port 6.50%

Fertilizer	5.60%
Steel 2.40%

Engineering 1.32%
Chemical 1.12%

Others1.11%

Steel 1.88% Others* 1.62%

*Other	includes	Refinery,	Steel	&	Power,	Fertilizer

Cement 16.26%

Port 2.10%
Cement 0.76%

Sugar 0.22%

Mining 5.90%

Power 59.42%

Port 10.80%

Mining 4.88%

Steel 4.65%

Fertilizer	6.07%

Iron Ore 6.18%

Others 4.36%Cement 3.64%

Ring Granulator

•	 Increased	 capacity	 of	 existing	wagon	 tippler	 for	
handling of new box NHL type of wagon from 90 MT 
to 110MT at MSPGCL, Koradi.

•	 Successfully	completed	PG	test	of	two	pusher	cars	
at Durgapur plant, hauling 52 loaded wagons.

GROWTH DRIVERS

For sustainable growth, the company will focus on 
its core strengths which are design and manufacture 
of bulk material handling products, renovation and 
modernization	 of	 existing	 bulk	 handling	 plants	 and	
offer extensive service support.
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Board’s Report

Dear Members,

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting this 25th Annual 
Report together with the Audited Financial Statements for 
the financial year ended on 31st March, 2016.

HIGHlIGHTS OF PERFORMANCE 

For the year ended on 31st March, 2016, the Company 
achieved a Turnover of `48,205.24 Lacs as against 
`52,014.24 Lacs in the previous year, representing a marginal 
decrease in Turnover by 7.32%. The tough market and 
economic conditions resulted in the shortfall in the Sales.

For the year ended on 31st March, 2016, the Company 
has	 achieved	 Earnings	 before	 Interest	 (Finance	 Cost),	
Depreciation	&	Amortization	and	Tax	(EBIDTA)	of	`1,479.88 
Lacs as against the EBIDTA of `4,367.03 Lacs during the 
previous year, representing decrease in EBIDTA by 66.11%. 

The Company holds total unexecuted orders of more than 
`84,119.49 Lacs as on 31st March, 2016. This will help us to 
continue to have sustainable growth in coming years.

 

MERGER OF THE COMPANy WITH ElECON  
ENGINEERING  COMPANy  lIMITED

The Board at its meeting held on 27th April, 2016 unanimously 
approved	the	scheme	of	Amalgamation	 (“Scheme”)	of	 the	
Company with its holding company, i.e. Elecon Engineering 
Company Limited in accordance with the provisions 
of Section 391-394 of the Companies Act, 1956 or any 
corresponding provisions of Companies Act, 2013 subject 
to necessary statutory approvals. 

FINANCE

Cash and Cash Equivalent as at 31st March, 2016 was 
`24.74 Lacs. The Company continues to focus on judicious 
management of its working capital. Receivables, inventories 
and other working capital parameters were kept under strict 
check through continuous monitoring.

DEPOSITS

The Company has not accepted any deposit from the public 
falling within the ambit of Section 73 of the Companies Act, 
2013	 and	 the	 Companies	 (Acceptance	 of	 Deposits)	 Rules,	
2014. 

Downhill Conveyor System at KIOP of NMDC Limited, Karnataka



PARTICulARS OF lOANS, GuARANTEES OR 
INVESTMENTS

Loans, Guarantees and Investments covered under Section 
186 of the Companies Act, 2013 form part of the Financial 
Statements provided in this Annual Report.

SuBSIDIARy, JOINT VENTuRE AND ASSOCIATE 
COMPANIES 

The Company does not have any subsidiary, joint venture or 
associate company during the year.

DIRECTORS AND KEy MANAGERIAl PERSONNEl

Retire by Rotation

In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013 and the Articles of Association of the Company, Shri 
Pradip M. Patel, Director will retire by rotation at the ensuing 
Annual General Meeting of your Company and being 
eligible, offers himself for re-appointment as a Director of 
the Company. The Board recommends his re-appointment.

New Appointment 

Pursuant to Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013, 
Shri Jal Patel, was appointed as an Additional Director 
of the Company with effect from 26th April, 2016, as an 
Independent Director under Section 149 of the Companies 
Act, 2013. His experience in the field of Corporate Laws, 
Accounting, Finance & Audit will provide essential guidance 
to the Company. He will hold office upto the date of the 
ensuing Annual General Meeting of the Company. 

The Board welcomed Shri Jal Patel and considers it 
an advantage to the Company to benefit from his 
experience and knowledge. 

In terms of Section 149 and other applicable 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, an 
Independent Director shall hold office for a term 
of five consecutive years and not be liable to retire 
by rotation.

Accordingly, Shri Jal Patel shall be appointed as an 
Independent Director to hold office for a term of 
five consecutive years from the date of ensuing 
Annual General Meeting of the Company and shall 
not be liable to retire by rotation.

Shri Jal Patel fulfills the conditions specified in the 
Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder 
for his appointment as an Independent Director 
of the Company and is independent of the 
management and has also given declaration that 
he meets the criteria of independence as laid 
down	under	Section	149	(6)	of	the	Companies	Act,	
2013.

 Members’ approval for his appointment as 
an Independent Director, under Sections 149 & 152 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 has been sought in the Notice 
convening the Annual General Meeting of the Company.

Board Evaluation

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 
and Rules made thereunder, the Board has carried out an 
annual performance evaluation of its own performance, the 
Directors individually as well as the evaluation of the working 
of its Committees. The manner in which the evaluation has 
been carried out is explained in the Corporate Governance 
Report.

DEClARATION By INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

Your Company has received necessary declaration from 
each	 Independent	 Director	 under	 Section	 149(7)	 of	 the	
Companies	 Act,	 2013,	 that	 he/she	 meets	 the	 criteria	 of	
independence	laid	down	in	Section	149(6)	of	the	Companies	
Act, 2013. 

STATuTORy DISClOSuRES

None of the Directors of your Company is disqualified as per 
provisions	 of	 Section	 164(2)	 of	 the	 Companies	 Act,	 2013.	
Your Directors have made necessary disclosures, as required 
under various provisions of the Act.

KEy MANAGERIAl PERSONNEl

Due to the applicability of Section 203, Shri Arvind Shore 
was appointed as a Chief Executive Officer of the Company 

FINANCIAl RESulTS:                                                    

31.03.2016Particulars 31.03.2015

(	` in	Lacs)

Profit Before Tax, Finance Cost, Depreciation & 
Amortization	and	Adjustments for previous year  

less:

Finance Cost

Depreciation	&	Amortization

Profit Before Tax 

less: 

Provision for Tax 

Deferred Tax

Short/(Excess)		Prov.	of	earlier	years

Profit After Tax

Add:

Previous Year Balance Brought Forward

PROFIT AVAIlABlE FOR APPROPRIATION

APPROPRIATIONS:

Proposed Dividend

Income Tax on Dividend

Transfer to General Reserve

Balance Carried Forward

 

1479.88

2701.83

1054.46

(2276.41)

-

( 788.41)

(0.52)

(1,487.48)

1894.33

406.85

--

--

--

406.85

4367.03

2868.04

1170.80

328.19

146.00

(71.42)

--

253.61

1640.72

1894.33

--

--

--

1894.33

The summary of operating results for the year and appropriation of divisible profits is 
given below: 
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for a period of one year. Shri Shore has a successful and 
diverse career, spanning over 35 years in the fields of Mining 
& Bulk Material Handling and EPC including setting up and 
growing new businesses. His tenure is getting completed 
on 30th April, 2016. He was appointed for further period of 
two years effective from 1st May, 2016.

The details of the remuneration paid to the Key Managerial 
Personnel appointed by your Company in accordance with 
the provisions of Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013 
are set out in this Annual Report.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBIlITy STATEMENT 

Pursuant	 to	 Section	 134(5)	 of	 the	 Companies	 Act,	 2013,	
with respect to the Directors’ Responsibility Statement, it is 
hereby confirmed that:

(a)	 in	 the	 preparation	 of	 the	 annual	 accounts	 for	 the	
financial year ended on 31st March, 2016, the applicable 
accounting standards had been followed alongwith 
proper explanation relating to material departures, if 
any; 

(b)	 the	 Directors	 had	 selected	 such	 accounting	 policies	
and applied them consistently and made judgments 
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as 
to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the 
Company as at 31st March, 2016 and of the profit and 
loss of the Company for the year ended on that date;

(c)	 the	Directors	had	 taken	proper	and	sufficient	care	 for	
the maintenance of adequate accounting records in 
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for 
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(d)	 the	annual	financial	statements	have	been	prepared	on	
a going concern basis; and

(e)	 the	 proper	 systems	 to	 ensure	 compliance	 with	 the	
provisions of all applicable laws were in place and such 
systems were adequate and operating effectively.

MEETINGS

During the year, four Board Meetings, four Audit Committee 
Meetings, one meeting of Corporate Social Responsibility 
Committee, one meeting of Nomination & Remuneration 
Committee, one separate meeting of Independent Directors 
were convened and held; the details of which are given in 
the Corporate Governance Report. The intervening gap 
between the Meetings was within the period prescribed 
under the Companies Act, 2013 and the Secretarial 
Standards.

AuDIT COMMITTEE

The Board has reconstituted the Audit Committee pursuant 

to the provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 
read	with	Rule	6	of	the	Companies	(Meetings	of	Board	and	
its	Powers)	Rules,	2014	comprises	of	the	following	Members:

1. Shri Jal R. Patel   - Chairman

2. Shri Prashant C. Amin    - Member

3. Ms. Reena P. Bhagwati  - Member 

4. Shri Chirayu R. Amin  - Member 

All recommendations made by the Audit Committee during 
the year were accepted by the Board.

CORPORATE SOCIAl RESPONSIBIlITy COMMITTEE

The Board had reconstituted the Corporate Social 
Responsibility Committee as per the provisions of Section 
135 of the Companies Act, 2013 comprises of the following 
Members:

1. Shri Pradip M. Patel  - Chairman

2. Shri Prashant C. Amin  - Member

3. Shri Chirayu R. Amin  - Member

4. Shri Jal R. Patel   - Member

NOMINATION AND REMuNERATION COMMITTEE

The Board had reconstituted the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee as per the provisions of Section 
178 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 6 of the 
Companies	(Meetings	of	Board	and	its	Powers)	Rules,	2014	
comprises of the following Members:

1. Shri Jal R. Patel   - Chairman

2. Shri Pradip M. Patel    - Member

3. Ms. Reena P. Bhagwati  - Member 

4. Shri Chirayu R. Amin  - Member 

The Board has on the recommendation of the Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee formulated the policy 
relating to selection and appointment of Directors, Senior 
Management Personnel and their remuneration which is 
attached to this report as “Annexure A”.

CORPORATE SOCIAl RESPONSIBIlITy INITIATIVES

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies 
Act,	 2013	 read	 with	 the	 Companies	 (Corporate	 Social	
Responsibility	 Policy)	 Rules,	 2014,	 your	 Company	 has	
constituted a Corporate Social Responsibility Committee. 

During the financial year, as the Company was facing severe 
cash flow issues and was not in a position to spend cash 
on CSR activities as the funds were required to maintain 
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the working capital requirement of the operations, the 
Company did not spend full CSR amount for the year.

The Annual Report on CSR activities is annexed herewith as 
“Annexure-B”.

RElATED PARTy TRANSACTIONS

The Company undertakes various transactions with related 
parties in the ordinary course of business. The Company 
follows a policy on Related Party Transactions duly approved 
by the Board of Directors, the same can be viewed at http://
www.eleconepc.com/pdf/related-party-transactions-
policy.pdf

All the Related Party Transactions entered into by the 
Company during the financial year were on  an arm’s 
length basis, in the ordinary course of business and were in 
compliance with the applicable provisions of the Companies 
Act,	2013	(‘the	Act’)	and	the	provisions	of	Section	188	of	the	
Act are not attracted. Thus, disclosure in Form AOC-2 is not 
required.

During the Financial Year 2015-16, none of the Directors 
has any pecuniary relationships or transactions vis-a-vis the 
Company.

AuDITORS

Statutory Auditors

M/s	Thacker	Butala	Desai,	Chartered	Accountants,	Navsari,	
(Firm	 Regn.	 No.	 110864W),	 the	 Statutory	 Auditors	 of	 the	
Company hold office till the conclusion of the Annual 
General Meeting for the year ended on 31st March, 2019, 
under	 the	 provisions	 of	 Section	 139(2)	 of	 the	 Companies	
Act, 2013, subject to the ratification of the Members of 
the Company; who were appointed in the 23rd Annual 
General Meeting dated 4th August, 2014. Accordingly, the 
ratification of their appointment as the Statutory Auditors 
of the Company is placed before the Members at the Annual 
General Meeting. 

M/s	Thacker	Butala	Desai,	Chartered	Accountants,	Navsari,	
(Firm	 Regn.	 No.	 110864W),	 has	 confirmed	 their	 eligibility	
under Section 141 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules 
made thereunder for re-appointment as Auditors of the 
Company.

Appointment of Joint Statutory Auditors

M/s	BSR	&	Co.	LLP,		Chartered	Accountants	(Firm	Registration	
No.	101248W/W-100022),	was	appointed	as	a	Joint	Statutory	
Auditors of the Company to hold office till the conclusion of 
this 25th Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of 30th 
Annual General Meeting, under the provisions of Section 
139(2)	of	the	Companies	Act,	2013,	subject	to	the	approval	
of the Members of the Company at ensuing Annual General 
Meeting. The Company has received letter from them 

to the effect that their appointment, if made, would be 
within	the	prescribed	limits	under	Section	141(3)(g)	of	the	
Companies Act, 2013 and that they are not disqualified from 
appointment.

Cost Auditors

Pursuant to Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read 
with	the	Companies	(Cost	Records	and	Audit)	Amendment	
Rules, 2014, the Cost Audit records maintained by the 
Company in respect of its activity are required to be audited. 
Your Directors have, on the recommendation of the Audit 
Committee, appointed Messrs Y. S. Thakar & Co. to audit 
the cost accounts of the Company for the year ended on  
31st March, 2017 on a remuneration of  ̀ 50,000 p.a. plus taxes 
as applicable and out of pocket expenses. As required under 
the Companies Act, 2013, the remuneration payable to the 
cost auditor is required to be placed before the Members 
in the Annual General Meeting for their ratification. 
Accordingly, a Resolution seeking Members’ ratification for 
the	 remuneration	 payable	 to	M/s	Y.	 S.	 Thakar	 &	 Co.,	 Cost	
Auditors is included at Item No. 6 of the Notice convening 
the Annual General Meeting.

Secretarial Auditors

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the 
Companies	 Act,	 2013	 and	 the	 Companies	 (Appointment	
and	 Remuneration	 of	 Managerial	 Personnel)	 Rules,	 2014,	
the Company has appointed CS Ashwin Shah, a Company 
Secretary in Practice to undertake the Secretarial Audit of 
the Company. The Report of Secretarial Audit is annexed 
herewith as “Annexure C”. 

VIGIl MECHANISM / WHISTlE BlOWER POlICy

The	 Company	 has	 already	 established	 Vigil	 Mechanism/	
Whistle Blower Policy that enables the Directors and 
Employees to report genuine concerns. The Vigil Mechanism 
provides	for	(a)	adequate	safeguards	against	victimization	of	
persons	who	use	the	Vigil	Mechanism;	and	(b)	direct	access	
to the Chairperson of the Audit Committee of the Board 
of Directors of the Company in appropriate or exceptional 
cases. The Policy is explained in detail in the Corporate 
Governance Report and also posted on the website of the 
Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Your Company has adopted the best Corporate Governance 
norms and it has been our endeavour to comply with and 
upgrade to the changing norms for reinforcing the valuable 
relationship between the Company & the Stakeholders. 

A detailed report on Corporate Governance together with 
Management Discussion and Analysis as well as a certificate 
from the Company’s Auditors form part of this Report.
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ENERGy CONSERVATION, TECHNOlOGy ABSORPTION 
AND FOREIGN ExCHANGE EARNINGS AND OuTGO

The particulars required to be disclosed in this report 
pursuant	 to	 the	 provisions	 of	 The	 Companies	 (Accounts)	
Rules, 2014 are given in “Annexure-D” forming part of this 
report.

ExTRACT OF ANNuAl RETuRN

The details forming part of the extract of Annual Return in 
form MGT-9 are annexed herewith as “Annexure-E” to the 
Board’s Report.

PARTICulARS OF EMPlOyEES

The information required pursuant to Section 197 read 
with	 Rules	 5(2)	 and	 5(3)	 of	 the	 Companies	 (Appointment	
and	Remuneration	of	Managerial	Personnel)	Rules,	2014	in	
respect of employees of the Company, is annexed to this 
report as “Annexure-F”.

INSuRANCE

The Company takes a very pragmatic approach towards 
insurance. Adequate insurance cover has been taken for all 
movable and immovable assets for various types of risks.

SIGNIFICANT OR MATERIAl ORDERS PASSED By THE 
REGulATORS OR COuRTS

There is no significant or material order passed by the 
Regulators or Courts or Tribunals which would impact the 
going concern status of the Company and its operations in 
future. 

INDuSTRIAl RElATIONS/PERSONNEl 

Your Company is committed to upholding its excellent 
reputation in the field of Industrial Relations. Through 
continuous efforts, the Company invests in and improvises 
the development programmes for its employees.

DISClOSuRE uNDER THE SExuAl HARASSMENT OF 
WOMEN AT WORKPlACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION 
AND REDRESSAl) ACT, 2013

The Company has in place a Sexual Harassment Policy in line 
with the requirement of the Sexual Harassment of Women 
at	 the	 Workplace	 (Prevention	 &	 Redressal)	 Act,	 2013.	
Internal	 Complaints	 Committee	 (ICC)	 has	 been	 set	 up	 to	
redress complaints received regarding sexual harassment. 
All	 the	 categories	 of	 employees	 (permanent,	 contractual,	
temporary,	trainee)	are	covered	under	the	policy.	

Following is a summary of sexual harassment complaints 
received and disposed off during the financial year 2015-16: 

No. of complaints received: Nil 

No. of complaints disposed off: Not Applicable 

RISK MANAGEMENT 

The Risk Management Committee of the Company has 
been entrusted with the responsibility to assist the Board 
in overseeing and approving the Company’s enterprise 
wide risk management framework. Board of Directors of 
the Company monitors and reports on the principal risks 
and uncertainties that can impact its ability to achieve its 
strategic objective. 

REPORTING OF FRAuDS

There is no instance of any fraud during the year under 
review, which requires the Statutory Auditors to report to 
the	Audit	Committee	or	Board	pursuant	to	Secton	143(12)	
of the Act and Rules framed thereunder.
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OVERVIEW

Growth in the emerging markets and developing 
economies is projected to be reasonable in 2017. The 
global Material Handling Equipment market is set to 
emerge as one of the fastest growing markets as the future 
trends indicate immense potential. Material handling 
equipment is required for quick and efficient movement 
of	goods	or	products,	locating	stock	and	localizing	stock.

The primary growth driver of this market is the high 
demand from heavy industries such as power, mining, 
and manufacturing. Material Handling Equipment 
enables end-users to reduce costs by bringing in 
operational efficiency and improving the order-to-
delivery cycle. These industries are highly dependent on 
material handling equipment for production, storage, 
and distribution of materials.

INDuSTRy STRuCTuRE AND DEVElOPMENT

The global material handling market can be segmented 
on the basis of product type such as conveying 
equipments, industrial trucks & lifts, hoists, cranes & 
monorails and automated material handling equipments. 
Despite several new mining projects getting impacted 
due to non-availability of clearances, the award of new 
orders in Roads and Railways, Mining and Construction 
business has done well. In the Mining business, the focus 
has been more on maintenance and operation contracts 
and stocks and sale of spares and accessories.

Material Handling Equipments represents an integral 
part of the supply chain of diverse industries for storage, 
control and movements of items, from the raw material 
stage to the distribution of finished products. The rising 
need of global production companies to automated 

Management Discussion & 
Analysis

NMDC Limited (KIOP) Downhill Conveyor carrying Iron Ore
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operations, and foster flow of goods in an efficient manner 
is the key force driving growth in the MHE Market. 

OPPORTuNITIES AND THREATS

The	Indian	Material	Handling	Equipment	(MHE)	industry	
has substantial growth opportunities, given the capital 
expenditure investment planned across sectors. As the 
name suggests, this sector deals with equipments that 
relate to the movement, storage, control and protection of 
materials, goods and products throughout the process of 
manufacturing, distribution, consumption and disposal. 
Further, as a large number of these investments have been 
planned to improve infrastructure, the industry is also 
largely shielded from recession. Volatility in raw material 
prices and a short-term slowdown in investments across 
sectors may hinder growth in this industry.  

India and China will see the strongest gains, in large part 
because of rising manufacturing output that will spur 
demand for equipment to facilitate distribution and 
production. West European markets include many of the 
most intensive users of material handling equipment 
in the world, because manufacturers in the region have 
long been among the leaders in adopting automated 
equipment as a response to high domestic labor costs. 
The	 US	 will	 continue	 to	 be	 the	 world’s	 largest	material	
handling product market, benefiting from an improved 
outlook for fixed investment spending. This will 
encourage	US	manufacturers	to	invest	in	new	equipment,	
particularly labor-saving automated products. 

The single most likely threat is the risk associated with 
a possible bumpy exit from the quantitative easing 
programmes	by	the	U.S	Federal	Reserve	(Fed).	As	already	
seen somewhat during last year, efforts by the Fed to 
pull out of quantitative easing programmes could lead 
to a surge in long term interest rates in developed and 
developing countries. Tapering could also lead to a sell-
off in global equity markets, a sharp decline of capital 
inflows to emerging economies and a spike in the risk 
premium for external financing in emerging economies. 
These first-round shocks in international financial markets 
could transmit quickly to developed and developing 
economies.

The global Material Handling Equipment market growth 
is inhibited due to growing material handling equipment 
prices, rising steel prices and lack of skilled labor.

FINANCIAl PERFORMANCES

During the year ended on 31st March, 2016, the Company 
has achieved turnover of `48,205.24 Lacs as against the 
turnover of `52,014.24 Lacs of the last year. The tough 
market and deprived economic conditions resulted in 
the shortfall in the Sales of the Company. For the year 
ended on 31st March, 2016, the Company made a Loss 
Before Tax of `2,276.41 Lacs as against `328.19 Lacs Profit 
Before Tax during the previous year.  The Company holds 
total unexecuted orders of more than `84,119.49 lacs as 
on 31st March, 2016. This will help us to have sustainable 
growth in coming years.

GlOBAl OuTlOOK

Growth in emerging market and developing economies 
is projected to increase from 4 percent in 2015 to 4.3 
and 4.7 percent in 2016 and 2017. Growth in China is 
expected to slowdown to 6.3 percent in 2016 and 6.0 
percent in 2017, primarily reflecting weaker investment 
growth as the economy continues to rebalance. Emerging 
Europe is projected to continue growing at a broadly 
steady pace, albeit with some slowing in 2016. Russia, 
which continues to adjust to low oil prices and Western 
sanctions, is expected to remain in recession in 2016. 
Growth in Japan is also expected to firm in 2016, on the 
back of fiscal support, lower oil prices, accommodative 
financial conditions and rising incomes. Aggregate GDP 
in Latin America and the Caribbean is now projected to 
contract in 2016 as well, albeit at a smaller rate than in 
2015, despite positive growth in most countries in the 
region.	 This	 reflects	 the	 recession	 in	 Brazil	 and	 other	
countries in economic distress. 

As per analysts, the Material Handling Equipment market 
in India is expected to grow at a CAGR of 16 percent 
over the period 2016 to 2018. One of the key factors 
contributing to this market growth is the increased 
industrialization	 across	 the	 states	 in	 India.	The	Material	
Handling Equipment market in India has also been 
witnessing the incorporation of electronic intelligence. 
However, the lack of restrictions on imports of used 
equipment could pose a challenge to the growth of this 
market.

RISK AND CONCERNS

Material	Handling	 Equipment	 sector	 (MHE),	 though	not	
one of the core sectors of the economy, assists almost every 
sector of the industry and hence contributes tremendously 
towards the industrial growth of the country. The Indian 
MHE sector needs major consolidation and economies of 
scale blended with technology upgradation. The risks for 
the economy are mainly associated with the possibility 
of	 sizeable	 volatility	 in	 financial	markets	 in	 response	 to	
the	normalization	of	monetary	policy,	leading	to	adverse	
effects on the real economy. 

The Indian economy is facing a number of significant 
downside risks in the year ahead. The macro-economic 
imbalances remain a very big concern to global investors. 
A key concern is a large current account deficit. Although 
India has taken some steps to try to narrow that, the 
fundamentals of its current account position reflect a 
chronic deficit which will take many years to address. 
Another big concern for global investors is the large fiscal 
deficit. These two deficit problems that India faces are 
going to be very hard to tackle, and it’s certainly hard to 
see how anything will change significantly over the next 
12 months with these risks.

The EPC Business as such is exposed to risks at various 
stages. Increase in raw material prices of steel, cement 
and other items, delays in payment from the Customer 
coupled with high interest cost of borrowings, delays 
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at construction sites due to unforeseen circumstances 
beyond our control, add to increase in project costs.

Your company has got in place risk mitigation strategies 
to	minimize	 the	 impact	 of	 such	 events.	 Moreover,	 with	
Oracle based ERP implemented across the Company, 
your Company is better equipped today to monitor all 
operations on real time basis, thereby taking corrective 
actions and reducing risk.

ECONOMIC OuTlOOK

FICCI has estimated a GDP growth of 7.8% in 2015-16 of 
which industrial growth is expected at 6.5%.

The global Material Handling Equipment market is 
segmented on the basis of end use industries such as 
power, ports, mines and others. Currently, these industries 
are experiencing slow growth in regions like Asia Pacific, 
Europe and North America.

Currently, global Material Handling Equipment market 
is dominated by Asia Pacific region, which is estimated 
to capture 30-40% of the global material handling 
equipment market value. Asia Pacific is followed by 
Europe and North America.  Global Material Handling 
Equipment market is expected to grow at a CAGR 
between 3-6% upto 2020, and in future, Asia Pacific is 
forecast to continue its dominance in global material 
handling equipment market, due to expected growth in 
end use industries.

The Indian economy is in the midst of significant 
structural change and is expected to embark on a 
sustained economic growth cycle. According to World 
Bank, India is set to be the world’s fastest growing 
major economy in the Financial Year 2016-17 at 7.5% 
and gradually move up to 8% in the next two financial 
years. However, this economic growth will depend on 
steady implementation of reforms aimed to improve 
productivity and competitiveness.

The fiscal drag on growth is expected to remain, but 
with much milder intensity than in previous years. The 
policy interest rates are set to rise gradually after mid-
2016, but the monetary policy stance will continue to be 
accommodative.	Unemployment	remains	extremely	high	
in many countries in the region and headline inflation is 
at alarmingly low levels.

To put in a nutshell, the growth of the Indian economy is 
expected to improve in 2016-17. But the recovery will be 
mild and gradual.

INTERNAl CONTROl SySTEM

The Company has a formal system of Internal Control 
testing which examines both the design effectiveness and 
operational effectiveness to ensure reliability of financial 
and	operational	information	and	all	statutory/regulatory	
compliances. The Company’s business processes are on 
oracle –ERP and have a strong monitoring and reporting 

process resulting in financial discipline and accountability.   

DEVElOPMENT IN HuMAN RESOuRCES/INDuSTRIAl 
RElATIONS FRONT 

In keeping with the tradition of pioneering Human 
Resource practices across geographies, the Human 
Resources	Management	(HRM)	function	has	driven	myriad	
changes in the way Human Resources are managed and 
developed, striking a balance between business needs 
and individual aspirations. The learning and development 
initiatives continued to receive importance. It focuses 
on improving the way of life, work culture, employee 
engagement, productivity, effectiveness and efficiency.

It has been the tradition of the Company to maintain 
excellent Industrial Relations at all levels. The regular 
interaction with the employees at all levels helps the 
Company in maintaining cordial and harmonious 
Industrial Relations. This has enabled the Company to 
maintain its growth despite competition and economic 
slowdown.

CAuTIONARy NOTE

The statements forming part of this Report may contain 
certain forward looking remarks within the meaning 
of applicable laws and regulations. The actual results, 
performances or achievements of the Company depend 
on many factors which may cause material deviation 
from any future results, performances or achievements.

Significant factors which could make a difference to the 
Company’s operations include domestic and international 
economic conditions, changes in Government 
regulations, tax regime and other statutes.

The Company assumes no responsibility to publicly 
amend, modify or revise any forward looking statements 
on the basis of any subsequent developments, 
information or events.
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Preamble 
Pursuant to Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder, the Board of Directors of the Company 
shall constitute the Nomination and Remuneration Committee. 

The Policy as formulated in compliance with Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 read along with the applicable rules 
thereto and Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement (though not applicable to Company but considered for the good governance 
of the Company) goes as under. And the same is, hereby, put forward for your approval.

Introduction
In accordance with terms of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder, (same amended from time 
to time), this policy on nomination and remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel (KMP), Senior Management 
and other employees of the Company has been formulated by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the 
Company and approved by the Board of Directors vide its resolution dated February 3, 2015. This policy shall act as a 
guideline for determining, inter-alia, qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a Director, matters relating to 
the remuneration, appointment, removal and evaluation of performance of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, Senior 
Management and other employees. The key features of this Company’s policy shall be included in the Board’s Report.

Definitions
In this Policy unless the context otherwise requires: 

(1) “Act” means Companies Act, 2013 and rules thereunder.

(2) “Company” means “Elecon EPC Projects Limited”.

(3) “Board of Directors” or “Board”, in relation to the Company, means the collective body of the directors of the 
Company.

(4) “Independent Director” means a director referred to in Section 149 (6) of the Companies Act, 2013.

(5) “Key Managerial Personnel” (KMP) means

 i) Chief Executive Officer or the Managing Director or the Manager,
 ii) Company Secretary,
 iii) Whole-time Director,
 iv) Chief Financial Officer and
 v) Such other officer as may be prescribed.

(6) “Committee” means Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company as constituted or reconstituted by 
the Board in accordance with the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013.

(7) “Policy” means, “Nomination and Remuneration Policy.”

(8) “Remuneration” means any money or its equivalent given or passed to any person for services rendered by him/her 
and includes perquisites as defined under the Income-Tax Act, 1961.

(9) “Senior Management” means personnel of the Company who are members of its core management team excluding 
Board of Directors. This would include all members of management one level below the executive directors, including 
all the functional heads.

(10) “Ministry” means the Ministry of Corporate Affairs.

(11) “Regulations” refers to and comprise of the Companies Act, 2013, the Companies (Meeting of Board and its Powers) 
Rules, 2014, the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, the Companies (Appointment 
and Remuneration of Managerial personnel) Rules, 2014, the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, Listing Agreement and such other rules and provisions as applicable to the matters 
dealt in by this Policy.

(12) “Employees’ Stock Option” means the option given to the directors, officers or employees of a company or of its 
holding company or subsidiary company or companies, if any, which gives such directors, officers or employees, the 
benefit or right to purchase, or to subscribe for, the shares of the company at a future date at a pre-determined price.

Objective
The policy is framed to ensure that a balanced fit is maintained between the level and composition of remuneration paid 
to the directors, key managerial personnel and senior management which is reasonable and sufficient enough to attract, 
retain and motivate them.

ANNEXURE - A TO BOARD’S REPORT
Nomination, Remuneration and Evaluation Policy



18

Membership / Composition
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall consist of a minimum 3 non-executive directors, majority of them 
being independent.
Membership of the Committee shall be disclosed in the Annual Report.
CHAIRMAN 
a) Chairman of the Committee shall be an Independent Director. 
b) Chairperson of the Company may be appointed as a member of the Committee but shall not be a Chairman of the 

Committee. 
c) In the absence of the Chairman, the members of the Committee present at the meeting shall choose one amongst 

them to act as Chairman. 
d) Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee meeting could be present at the Annual General Meeting 

or may nominate some other member to answer the shareholders’ queries.

QUORUM 
Minimum two (2) members shall constitute a quorum for the Committee meeting.  

COMMITTEE MEMBERS’ INTERESTS 
a) A member of the Committee is not entitled to be present when his or her own remuneration is discussed at a meeting 

or when his or her performance is being evaluated. 
b) The Committee may invite such executives, as it considers appropriate, to be present at the meetings of the Committee. 

VOTING
a) Matters arising for determination at Committee meetings shall be decided by a majority of votes of Members present 

and voting and any such decision shall for all purposes be deemed a decision of the Committee. 
b) In the case of equality of votes, the Chairman of the meeting will have a casting vote. 

TERM
Term of the Committee shall be continued unless terminated by the Board of Directors.

Applicability
This Policy is applicable to: 
1. Directors viz. Executive, Non-executive and Independent 
2. Key Managerial Personnel 
3. Senior Management Personnel 
4. Other Employees of the Company 

Effective Date
This policy shall be operational with immediate effect after its adoption and approval by the Board of Directors at its 
meeting held on 3rd February, 2015.

Role / Duties
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee is responsible for:  
 reviewing the structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board at least 

annually and making recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to complement the Company’s 
corporate strategy, with the objective to diversify the Board; 

 identifying individuals suitably qualified to be appointed as the KMPs or in the senior management of the Company; 
 recommending to the Board on the selection of individuals nominated for directorship; 
 making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration payable to the Directors/ KMPs/Senior Officials so 

appointed/reappointed; 
 assessing the independence of independent directors; 
 such other key issues/matters as may be referred by the Board or as may be necessary in view of the Listing Agreement 

and provision of the Companies Act 2013 and Rules thereunder. 
 to make recommendations to the Board concerning any matters relating to the continuation in office of any Director at 

any time including the suspension or termination of service of an Executive Director as an employee of the Company 
subject to the provision of the law and their service contract;
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 to ensure that level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient, relationship of remuneration to 
performance is clear and meets appropriate performance benchmarks; 

 to devise a policy on Board diversity; 
 to develop a succession plan for the Board and to regularly review the plan;

EVALUATION
The Committee shall carry out evaluation of performance of every Director, KMP and Senior Management Personnel at 
regular interval (yearly).
The following criteria may assist in determining how effective the performances of the Directors/KMPs/Senior officials have 
been: 
 Leadership & stewardship abilities 
 contributing to clearly define corporate objectives & plans 
 Communication of expectations & concerns clearly with subordinates 
 obtain adequate, relevant & timely information from external sources. 
 review & approval achievement of strategic and operational plans, objectives, budgets 
 regular monitoring of corporate results against projections 
 identify, monitor & mitigate significant corporate risks 
 assess policies, structures & procedures 
 direct, monitor & evaluate KMPs, senior officials 
 review management’s succession plan 
 effective meetings 
 assuring appropriate board size, composition, independence, structure 
 clearly defining roles & monitoring activities of committees 
 review of corporation’s ethical conduct 

Evaluation on the aforesaid parameters will be conducted by the Independent Directors for each of the Executive/Non-
Independent Directors in a separate meeting of the Independent Directors. 

The Executive Director/Non-Independent Directors along with the Independent Directors will evaluate/assess each of the 
Independent Directors on the aforesaid parameters. Only the Independent Director being evaluated will not participate in 
the said evaluation discussion.

APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS/KMPS/SENIOR OFFICIALS 
 Enhancing the competencies of the Board and attracting as well as retaining talented employees for role of KMP/a 

level below KMP are the basis for the Nomination and Remuneration Committee to select a candidate for appointment 
to the Board. When recommending a candidate for appointment, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee has 
regard to:  

	 •	 assessing	 the	appointee	against	a	 range	of	criteria	which	 includes	but	not	be	 limited	 to	qualifications,	 skills,	
regional and industry experience, background and other qualities required to operate successfully in the position, 
with due regard for the benefits from diversifying the Board; 

	 •	 the	 extent	 to	which	 the	 appointee	 is	 likely	 to	 contribute	 to	 the	overall	 effectiveness	of	 the	Board,	work	
constructively with the existing directors and enhance the efficiencies of the Company; 

	 •	 the	skills	and	experience	that	the	appointee	brings	to	the	role	of	KMP/Senior	Official	and	how	an	appointee	will	
enhance the skill sets and experience of the Board as a whole; 

	 •	 the	nature	of	existing	positions	held	by	 the	appointee	 including	directorships	or	other	 relationships	and	 the	
impact they may have on the appointee’s ability to exercise independent judgment; 

 Personal specifications for Directors 
 1. Qualification 
	 	 •	 Degree	holder	in	relevant	disciplines	(e.g.	management,	accountancy,	legal);	or	
	 	 •	 Recognised	specialist	

 2. Experience 
	 	 •	 Experience	of	management	in	a	diverse	organisation	
	 	 •	 Experience	in	accounting	and	finance,	administration,	corporate	and	strategic	planning	or	fund	management	
	 	 •	 Demonstrable	ability	to	work	effectively	with	a	Board	of	Directors
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 3. Skills 
	 	 •	 Excellent	interpersonal,	communication	and	representational	skills	
	 	 •	 Demonstrable	leadership	skills	
	 	 •	 Extensive	team	building	and	management	skills	
	 	 •	 Strong	influencing	and	negotiating	skills	
	 	 •	 Having	continuous	professional	development	to	refresh	knowledge	and	skills	

 4. Abilities and Attributes 
	 	 •	 Commitment	to	high	standards	of	ethics,	personal	integrity	and	probity	
	 	 •	 Commitment	to	the	promotion	of	equal	opportunities,	community	cohesion	and	health	and	safety	in	the	

workplace
  5. Political inclinations and opinions.
 6. Other Specifications as under: 
	 	 •	 Degree	holder	in	relevant	disciplines;	
	 	 •	 Experience	of	management	in	a	diverse	organization;	
	 	 •	 Excellent	interpersonal,	communication	and	representational	skills;	
	 	 •	 Demonstrable	leadership	skills;	
	 	 •	 Commitment	to	high	standards	of	ethics,	personal	integrity	and	probity;	
	 	 •	 Commitment	to	the	promotion	of	equal	opportunities,	community	cohesion	and	health	and	safety	in	the	

workplace; 
	 	 •	 Having	continuous	professional	development	to	refresh	knowledge	and	skills.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS, KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT 
The guiding principle is that the level and composition of remuneration shall be reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain 
and motivate Directors, Key Management Personnel and other senior officials. The Directors, Key Management Personnel 
and other senior official’s salary shall be based & determined on the individual person’s responsibilities and performance 
and in accordance with the limits as prescribed statutorily, if any. 
The Nominations & Remuneration Committee determines individual remuneration packages for Directors, KMPs and 
Senior Officials of the Company taking into account factors it deems relevant, including but not limited to market, business 
performance and practices in comparable companies, having due regard to financial and commercial health of the Company 
as well as prevailing laws and government/other guidelines. The Committee consults with the Chairman of the Board as 
it deems appropriate. Remuneration of the Chairman is recommended by the Committee to the Board of the Company. 

(i) Remuneration: 
 a) Base Compensation (Fixed Salaries) 
  Must be competitive and reflective of the individual’s role, responsibility and experience in relation to 

performance of day-to-day activities, usually reviewed on an annual basis; (includes salary, allowances and other 
statutory/non-statutory benefits which are normal part of remuneration package in line with market practices). 

 b) Variable Salary
  The RNC may in its discretion structure any portion of remuneration to link rewards to corporate and individual 

performance, fulfillment of specified improvement targets or the attainment of certain financial or other 
objectives set by the Board. The amount payable is determined by the Committee, based on performance against 
pre-determined financial and non-financial metrics. 

(ii) Statutory Requirements: 
	 	 •	 Section	197(5)	provides	for	remuneration	by	way	of	a	fee	to	a	director	for	attending	meetings	of	the	Board	

of Directors and Committee meetings or for any other purpose as may be decided by the Board. 
	 	 •	 Section	197(1)	of	the	Companies	Act,	2013	provides	for	the	total	managerial	remuneration	payable	by	the	

Company to its directors, including managing director and whole time director, and its manager in respect 
of any financial year shall not exceed eleven percent of the net profits of the Company computed in the 
manner laid down in Section 198 in the manner as prescribed under the Act. 

	 	 •	 The	Company	with	the	approval	of	the	Shareholders	and	Central	Government	may	authorise	the	payment	
of remuneration exceeding eleven percent of the net profits of the company, subject to the provisions of 
Schedule V. 
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	 	 •	 The	Company	may	with	the	approval	of	the	shareholders	authorise	the	payment	of	remuneration	upto	five	
percent of the net profits of the Company to its anyone Managing Director/Whole Time Director/Manager 
and ten percent in case of more than one such official. 

	 	 •	 The	Company	may	pay	remuneration	to	its	directors,	other	than	Managing	Director	and	Whole	Time	Director	
upto one percent of the net profits of the Company, if there is a managing director or whole time director 
or manager and three percent of the net profits in any other case. 

	 	 •	 The	net	profits	for	the	purpose	of	the	above	remuneration	shall	be	computed	in	the	manner	referred	to	in	
Section 198 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 The Independent Directors shall not be entitled to any stock option and may receive remuneration by way of fee for 
attending meetings of the Board or Committee thereof or for any other purpose as may be decided by the Board and 
profit related commission as may be approved by the members. The sitting fee to the Independent Directors shall not 
be less than the sitting fee payable to other directors. 

 The remuneration payable to the Directors shall be as per the Company’s policy and shall be valued as per the Income 
Tax Rules. 

 The remuneration payable to the Key Managerial Personnel and the Senior Management shall be as may be decided 
by the Board having regard to their experience, leadership abilities, initiative taking abilities and knowledge base.

REMOVAL
The Committee may recommend, to the Board removal of a Director, KMP or Senior Management Personnel due to following 
reasons:
 Any disqualification
 Misconduct
 Breach of Contract or trust
	 Conflict	in	interest
Such recommendation to the Board shall be with reasons recorded in writing.

OTHER GENERAL MATTERS
The Committee shall ensure that –
1. The policy is in accordance with the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder (including any statutory 

modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force);
2. The composition of the Board is in accordance with the Companies Act, 2013, and the rules made thereunder, and 

Listing Agreement as amended from time to time;
3. The Board of the Company may consciously consist of directors from expertise field as may be considered fit by the 

Committee which is essential and beneficial for the growth of the Company;
4. The level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate directors of the 

quality required to run the company successfully;
5. Relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance benchmarks; and
6. Remuneration to directors, KMPs and senior management involves a balance between fixed and incentive pay 

reflecting	short	and	long-term	performance	objectives	appropriate	to	the	working	of	the	company	and	its	goals;
7. The policy is disclosed in the Boards’ Report.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors,

P. M. Patel 
Chairman
DIN : 00012138Place : Vallabh Vidyanagar

Date : 27-04-2016



22

1. A brief outline of the Company’s CSR policy, including overview of projects or programmes proposed to be undertaken and 
a reference to the web-link to the CSR policy and projects or programmes.

 CSR Policy is stated herein below:

 Weblink: http://www.eleconepc.com/pdf/csr-policy.pdf

2. Composition of the CSR Committee:
 Shri Jal R. Patel   - Chairman*

 Shri Chirayu Amin  - Member 

 Shri Pradip M. Patel    - Member 

 Shri Prashant C. Amin  - Member

 * appointed in the Board Meeting held on 26th April, 2016.

3. Average net profit of the Company for last three Financial Years:
 Average net profit: ` 1690.48 lacs

4. Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two percent of the amount as in item 3 above):
 The Company was required to spend ` 33.81 lacs towards CSR.

5. Details of CSR spent for the financial year:
 a.  Total amount spent for the financial year:  ` 4.25 lacs

 b. Amount unspent, if any: ` 29.56 Lacs

 c. Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year is detailed below:

* Details of implementing Agency :- B. I. Patel Charitable Trust

6. Reasons for not spending the balance amount towards CSR activities for the Financial Year 2015-16:
  The Company was facing liquidity issues during the financial year and the funds were required to meet and manage the critical 

working capital requirements of the operations.

7. A responsibility statement of the CSR Committee that the implementation and monitoring of CSR Policy, is in compliance 
with CSR objectives and Policy of the Company.

  CSR Policy has been implemented and the CSR Committee monitors the implementation of the CSR project and activities with our 
CSR objectives. 

ANNEXURE - B TO BOARD’S REPORT
ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) ACTIVITIES

 Sr.  Projects / Activities Sector Locations - Amt. Outlay  Amt. spent on Cumulative Amount spent:
 No.    Districts (Budget) projects or Expenditure Direct or
     (State) Project or  programmes Upto reporting through
      Programme wise  period implementing
         agency*
      ` in Lacs ` in Lacs  ` in Lacs ` in Lacs

 1. Social Welfare  Charity Dist.: Anand - 4.25 4.25 4.25 *
     State: Gujarat

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors,

P. M. Patel  Jal R. Patel 
Chairman Chairman of
   CSR Committee
DIN : 00012138 DIN : 00065021

Place : Vallabh Vidyanagar
Date : 27-04-2016
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To 
The Members,
ELECON EPC PROJECTS LIMITED

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good 
corporate practices by Elecon EPC Projects Limited (hereinafter called the company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a 
manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing 
my opinion thereon.
Based on my verification of the Elecon EPC Projects Limited’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other 
records maintained by the company and  also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized 
representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, the company has, during the audit 
period covering the financial year ended on 31st March 2016 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and 
also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and 
subject to the reporting made hereinafter:
I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by Elecon EPC Projects 
Limited (“the Company”) for the financial year ended on 31st March 2016 according to the provisions of:
i.  The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;
ii.  The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder; (Not Applicable to the Company)
iii.  The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder; (Not Applicable to the Company)
iv.  Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct 

Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings; (Not Applicable to the Company)
v.  The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI 

Act’):- (Not Applicable to the Company)
 a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;
 b.  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992;
 c.  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009;
 d.  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) 

Guidelines, 1999 ;
 e.  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008;
 f. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 

regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;
 g.  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; and
 h.  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998;

vi.  Laws specifically applicable to the industry to which the company belongs, as identified by the management, that is to 
say:

 There is no law specifically applicable to the company except the general laws applicable to the Manufacturing company.
 I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:
 i. Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.
 ii. The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with Stock Exchanges; (Not Applicable to the Company)
 During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, 

Standards, etc. mentioned above subject to late filing of certain e-forms.

I further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors 
and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under 
review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act. 

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent 

ANNEXURE - C TO BOARD’S REPORT
FORM NO. MR-3  SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON 31st March, 2016

Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) 
Rules, 2014



24

at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the 
agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. 

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views are captured and recorded as part of the minutes.

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and operations 
of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

CS Ashwin Shah
Place :  Ahmedabad  Company Secretary
Date  :  25-04-2016   C. P. No. 1640

Note :  This report is to be read with our Annexure A and forms an integral part of this report.

‘ANNEXURE A’ to the Secretarial Audit Report

To,
The Members,
Elecon EPC Projects Limited

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.
1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. Our responsibility is to express 

an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.
2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the 

correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts 
are	reflected	in	secretarial	records.	We	believe	that	the	processes	and	practices,	we	followed	provide	a	reasonable	basis	
for our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the Company.
4. Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and 

regulations and happening of events etc.
5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility 

of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.
6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the efficacy or 

effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company.

    CS Ashwin Shah
Place :  Ahmedabad  Company Secretary
Date  :  25-04-2016   C. P. No. 1640
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Energy Conservation, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo
The information on conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings and outgo stipulated 
under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule, 8 of The Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, is detailed 
as under:-

1. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY
 -  Adoption of the new technologies with focus on Energy Conservation.
 -  Started to use the Energy Efficient LED Lights, wherever replacements are required and in our offices.
 -  Started to replace and retrofitting of high power consumption lamps like Metal, HPMV Lamps with LED type lamps.
 -   Reduce the use of compressor air by providing electrically energy efficient tools in place of pneumatic tools.
 -  Continuously maintaining use of High Energy Efficient Motors in replacement of Normal Motors in Hoist application 

with AC variable frequency drives.
 -  By adopting ‘TPM’ practice, observed that use of natural resources like Oil, Air, Water and Electricity are reduced.

2. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION: 
 (I)  Research and Development
  (a) Since inception of the Company and in pursuit of R & D endeavors, the Company is regularly incurring 

expenditure on R & D on the following activities.
    - Drawing, Design & Development of new products;
   - Continuous improvement of existing products for enhanced durability and performance;
   - Testing and Adaption of new materials;
   - New processes and Up gradation of existing processes;
   - Product engineering for enhanced product quality and reliability;
   - Reduction of rejections and warranty returns;
   - Improving New Product Development (NPD) lead time;
   - Environment compliance by products and processes;
   - Testing and validation of new products;

  (b) Benefits derived as a result of R & D: 
   It has resulted in the improvement of quality of the products and reduced operations cost. Up-gradation of 

products to the new requirements has been possible because of R & D done in the Company since inception 
on a continuous basis & Customers’ satisfaction and new business opportunities because of cost, quality and 
latest technology.

  (c) Future plan of action:
   Future R & D efforts will continue along similar lines, as at present, but with more focus, thrust and endeavors. 

  (d) Expenditure on R & D:
    In pursuit of R & D endeavors, the Company is continuously incurring R & D expenditure both on Capital and 

Revenue,	which	has	not	been	separately	reflected	but	is	being	shown	as	part	of	regular	heads	of	accounts	in	
Fixed Assets and in Statement of Profit and Loss respectively.

 (II)  Technology Absorption, Adaptation and innovation:
  New range of equipment:
	 	 	 •	 Hydraulic	maintenance	 trolleys	on	 triangular	gantry	 for	 inspection	and	maintenance	of	 conveyor,	

thereby, eliminating walkways throughout the conveyor which resulted in significant cost reduction.
	 	 	 •	 Have	developed	and	supplied	skid	mounted	ROM	coal	crushing	system,	consisting	of	grizzly,	hopper,	

apron feeder, two roll crusher and product discharge conveyor of 500 TPH capacity; ideally suited for 
private coal miners. The product has received very good feedback from the field.

	 	 	 •	 Have	developed	idler	rollers,	which	have	maximum	drag	force	of	350	gm,	which	means	lower	power	
consumption.

	 	 	 •	 Have	developed	carrying	idler	rollers	having	TIR	of	0.6	mm,	which	means	lower	power	consumption,	
lower noise, less vibration at higher speeds.

ANNEXURE – D  TO BOARD’S REPORT
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	 	 	 •	 Stacker	/	Reclaimer		of		“C”	Frame	design	of	4200/4600	TPH	Stacking	capacity	&	2500/3500	TPH	Reclaiming	
capacity and 51 Mt. Boom Reach. The technology was outsourced from EMS – Tech Inc., Canada

	 	 	 •	 Developed	a	pile	reclaimer	to	reclaim	bulk	material	like	coal,	iron	ore	etc.	from	pile	to	feed	to	conveyor.	
We developed three models ranging from 500 TPH to 1500 TPH

	 	 	 •	 High	speed	rollers	suitable	for	8.15	m/s	conveyor	speed,	less	than	0.6	mm	TIR	and	less	than	200	gms.	
low drag force.

	 	 	 •	 Pipe	conveyor	of	7.5	km	length	&	1500	TPH	capacity,	one	of	the	longest	conveyors	in	the	world.
	 	 	 •	 Transfer	car	with	ejector	system	for	Wagon	Transfer

  Capacity Increase in existing equipment:
	 	 	 •	 Barrel-Reclaimer	with	1650	TPH	reclaiming	capacity	and	40	m	rail	center.
	 	 	 •	 Stacker-Reclaimer	with	2400	TPH	stacking	&	2400	TPH	reclaiming	and	60	m	boom	reach.
	 	 	 •	 1100	TPH	Hammer	crusher	for	(-)	5	mm	product	size	of	coal.

  Technology adaption: 
	 	 	 •	 Wine	glass	type	roller	support	frame	&	fabricated	pipe	frames	for	belt	conveyors.
	 	 	 •	 Up-gradation	of	existing	plant	chutes	for	optimized	flow	with	the	help	of	Chute	Analysis	software.

 (III)  Foreign Exchange Earnings and Out go:

  Foreign Exchange Earnings:  ` 1,166.64 lacs as against last year of ` 1,754.81 lacs.
  Foreign Exchange Out Go:  ` 1,258.25 lacs as against last year of ` 1,996.50  lacs.

      For and on behalf of the Board of Directors,

      P. M. Patel
Place : Vallabh Vidyanagar    Chairman
Date : 27-04-2016    DIN : 00012138
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ANNEXURE - E TO BOARD’S REPORT
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN - Form No. MGT – 9 
For F. Y. Ended on 31-03-2016

[Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and 
Administration) Rules, 2014]

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY
 All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated:-

III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

  Sr. No. Name and Description of  NIC Code of the Product/ % to total turnover of the
  main products/services service Company

 1. Bulk Material Handling  2915 100
  Equipments 

 Sr. NAME AND ADDRESS CIN/GLN HOLDING/ % OF  APPLI-
 No. OF THE COMPANY   SUBSIDIARY/ SHARES CABLE
    ASSOCIATE  HELD SECTION

 1. Elecon Engineering Company Limited  L29259GJ1960PLC001082 Holding Company 99.86%* 2 (46)
  Anand-Sojitra Road,
  Vallabh Vidyanagar – 388 120. 

I. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

 i) CIN U29219GJ1991PLC015379

 ii) Registration Date 10th April, 1991

 iii) Name of the Company ELECON EPC PROJECTS LIMITED.

 iv) Category / Sub-Category of the Company Company having Share Capital 

 v) Address of the Registered office and contact details C/o. Elecon Engineering Co. Ltd.,
   Anand-Sojitra Road, 
   Vallabh Vidyanagar – 388 120, Gujarat.
   Tel.: 02692-237016/230017,
   Fax.: 02692-227020
   Website : www.eleconepc.com

 vi) Whether listed company No

 vii) Name, Address and Contact details of Registrar and  Not Applicable
  Transfer Agent, if any

IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)
 i)  Category–wise Share Holding

 Category of  No. of Shares held at the beginning of No. of Shares held at the end of the year % Change
 Shareholders the year   during
    the year

  Demat Physical  Total % of  Demat Physical  Total % of
      Total     Total 
      Shares     Shares

A. Promoters
(1) Indian 
  a) Individual/ HUF  6661 6661 1.49% - 14,086 14,086 3.15% 1.66
  b) Central Govt - - - - - - - - -
  c) State Govt(s)  - - - - - - - - -
  d) Bodies Corp.  - 432523 432523 96.85% - 432523 432523 96.85% -
  e) Banks / FI  - - - - - - - - -
  f ) Any Other (Trust) - 7425 7425 1.66% - - - - (1.66)

 Sub-total (A) (1):-  - 446609 446609 100.00 - 446609 446609 100.00 -

* includes % of Preference Shares held by the Holding Company.
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 Category of  No. of Shares held at the beginning of No. of Shares held at the end of the year % Change
 Shareholders the year   during
    the year

  Demat Physical  Total % of  Demat Physical  Total % of
      Total     Total 
      Shares     Shares

(2)  Foreign 

  a)  NRIs - Individuals  - - - - - - - - -
  b)  Other – Individuals  - - - - - - - - -
  c)  Bodies Corp.  - - - - - - - - -
  d)  Banks / FI  - - - - - - - - -
  e)  Any Other.  - - - - - - - - -

 Sub-total (A) (2):-  - - - - - - - - -

Total shareholding of 
Promoter (A) = (A)(1)+(A)(2)  446609 446609 100.00  446609 446609 100.00 

B. Public Shareholding          

1. Institutions         
  a)  Mutual Funds  - - - - - - - - -
  b)  Banks / FI  - - - - - - - - -
  c)  Central Govt - - - - - - - - -
  d)  State Govt(s)  - - - - - - - - -
  e)  Venture Capital  - - - - - - - - -
   Funds  
  f ) Insurance Companies  - - - - - - - - -
  g)  FIIs  - - - - - - - - -
  h)  Foreign Venture 
   Capital Funds 
   Others (specify)  - - - - - - - - -

Sub-total (B)(1):-  - - - - - - - - -

2.  Non-Institutions  - - - - - - - - -
  a)  Bodies Corp.  - - - - - - - - -
   i)   Indian  - - - - - - - - -
   ii)  Overseas  - - - - - - - - -

  b)  Individuals  - - - - - - - - -

   i)   Individual  - - - - - - - - -
    shareholders
    holding nominal 
    share capital upto 
    ` 1 lakh  

   ii) Individual 
    shareholders 
    holding
    nominal share 
    capital in
    excess of `1 lakh  - - - - - - - - -

  c)  Others (specify)  - - - - - - - - - 

Sub-Total (B)(2):-  - - - - - - - - -

Total Public Shareholding 
(B)=(B)(1)+(B)(2) - - - - - - - - -

C.  Shares held by 
  Custodian for GDRs 
  & ADRs  - - - - - - - - -

 Grand Total (A+B+C)  - 446609 446609 100.00  446609 446609 100.00 -
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 (ii)  Shareholding of Promoters   

 Sr. Shareholder’s Shareholding at the beginning Shareholding at the end
 No. name of the year of the year

    No. of % of total % of  No. of % of total % of shares % change
    shares shares of  shares shares shares of pledged/ in share
     the  pledged/  the encumbe- holding
     company encumbe-  company red to total during 
      red to total   shares the year
      shares    

 1. Elecon Engineering Co. Ltd.  270170 60.49% - 270170 60.49% - -
  (EECL) 

 2. Akaaish Mechatronics Ltd. 4252 0.95% - 4252 0.95% - -

 3. K. B. Investments Ptv. Ltd. 50651 11.34% - 50651 11.34% - -

 4. Bipra Investments &  45017 10.08% - 45017 10.08% - -
  Trusts Private Limited 

 5. Shantaben I. Patel Trust  7425 1.66% - - - - -
  C/o Minita Dalal 

 6. Elecon Information  20749 4.65% - 20749 4.65% - -
  Technology Limited 

 7. Devkishan Investments  5137 1.15% - 5137 1.15% - -
  Private Limited 

 8. Prayas Engineering Limited 3947 0.88% - 3947 0.88% - -

 9. Emtici Engineering Limited 29954 6.71% - 29954 6.71% - -

 10. Shri Prayasvin B. Patel  6275 1.41% - 13,700 3.07% - -

 11. Smt. Taruna P. Patel  146 0.03% - 146 0.03% - -

 12. Jamko Consultants  80 0.02% - 80 0.02% - -
  Private Limited

 13. Ms. Aishwarya P. Patel  120 0.03% - 120 0.03% - -
  J/H Smt. Taruna P. Patel 

 14. Ms. Aakanksha P. Patel  120 0.03% - 120 0.03% - -
  J/H Smt. Taruna P. Patel 

 15. Wizard Fincap Limited 1283 0.29% - 1283 0.29% - -

 16. Speciality Woodpack  1283 0.29% - 1283 0.29% - -
  Private Limited 

  Total 446609 100 % - 446609 100 % - -

 iii)  Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)

 Sr. Promoters’ Shareholding Shareholding at the beginning Cumulative shareholding 
 No.   of the year during the year 

    No. of shares % of total shares  No. of shares % of total shares
     of the Company  of the Company

 1. Shantaben I. Patel Trust C/o Minita Dalal 

  At the beginning of the year 7425 1.66% 7425 1.66%
  Transfer of equity shares during the year (7425) (1.66%) - -
  At the end of the year  Nil Nil - -

 2. Shri Prayasvin B. Patel 

  At the beginning of the year 6275 1.41% 6275 1.41%
  Transfer of equity shares during the year 7425 1.66% 13,700 3.07%
  At the End of the year 13,700 3.07% 13,700 3.07%
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 iv.  Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):

   Shareholding at the beginning Cumulative shareholding 
   of the year during the year

 For Each of the Top 10 Shareholders No. of shares % of total shares  No. of shares % of total shares
    of the Company  of the Company

 At the beginning of the year 

 Date wise Increase / Decrease in 
 Promoters Share holding during the year 
 specifying the reasons for increase /   Not Applicable
 decrease (e.g. allotment / transfer / 
 bonus/ sweat equity etc): 

 At the End of the year (or on the date of 
 separation, if separated during the year)

  At the beginning of the year  None of the Directors/ KMP hold shares in the Company

  Date wise Increase / Decrease in Share 
  holding during the year specifying the reasons  None of the Directors / KMP hold shares in the Company
  for increase / decrease (e.g. allotment / 
  transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc):

  At the End of the year  None of the Directors / KMP hold shares in the Company

 v)  Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

 Sr.  Shareholding at the beginning Cumulative shareholding during
 No.  of the year the year

  For Each of the Directors and KMP No. of % of total Shares  No. of Shares % of total Shares
   Shares of the Company  of the Company

   Secured Loans Unsecured Deposits Total
   excluding deposits Loans  Indebtedness

Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial year

i)  Principal Amount 1,63,41,24,535.35 10,32,00,000.00 - 1,73,73,24,535.35 

ii)  Interest due but not paid -    -    -    -   

iii) Interest accrued but not due 48,58,518.00 - - 48,58,518.00

Total (i+ii+iii)  1,63,89,83,053.35 10,32,00,000.00 - 1,74,21,83,053.35

Change in Indebtedness during the financial year

Addition 26,05,06,585.46 27,50,00,000.00 - 53,55,06,585.46 

Reduction 7,38,43,145.26 5,27,00,000.00 - 12,65,43,145.26 

Net Change 18,66,63,440.20 22,23,00,000.00 - 66,20,49,730.72 

Indebtedness at the end of the financial year

i)  Principal Amount 1,82,07,87,975.55 32,55,00,000.00 - 2,14,62,87,975.55 

ii)  Interest due but not paid - - - -   

iii)  Interest accrued but not due 63,89,217.00 - - 63,89,217.00 

Total (i+ii+iii) 1,82,71,77,192.55 32,55,00,000.00 - 2,15,26,77,192.55

V. INDEBTEDNESS - Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment.
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 Sr. Particulars of Remuneration  Name of MD/WTD/ Manager Total Amount
 No.

1. Gross salary  -  - - - -

 (a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1)  - - - - -
  of the Income-Tax Act, 1961  

 (b)  Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-Tax Act, 1961 - - - - -

 (c)  Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3)  - - - - -
  Income-Tax Act, 1961

2. Stock Option - - - - -

3. Sweat Equity - - - - -

4. Commission
 -  as % of profit - - - - -
 -  others, specify…
5. Others, please specify  -  - - - -

  Total (A) - - - - -

  Ceiling as per the Act  - - - - -

VI.     REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

 A.  Remuneration to Managing Director, Wholetime Directors and/or Manager: NIL

 Sr. Particulars of Remuneration   Name of Directors Total
  No.      Amount 

 B.  Remuneration to Other Directors: (Amount in `)

 1. Independent Directors Shri Chirayu Amin  Ms. Reena P. Bhagwati  

  Fee for attending board/committee meetings 1,62,500  50,000 2,12,500

  Commission -  - -

  Others, please specify -  - -

  Total B (1) -  - 2,12,500

 2. Other Non-Executive Directors Shri Pradip M. Patel  Shri Prashant C. Amin

  Commission -  - -

  Fee for attending board/committee meetings 1,12,500  2,05,000 3,17,500

  Others, please specify -  - -

   Total B (2) -  - 3,17,500

   Total (B)=(1+2) -  - 5,30,000

   Total Managerial Remuneration (A+B) -  - 5,30,000

  Overall Ceiling as per the Act   3% of Net Profit  
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 Sr. 
Particulars of Remuneration

  Key Managerial Personnel  
Total Amount

 No.  CEO Company CFO
    Secretary

1 Gross Salary   

 (a)  Salary as per provisions contained in  86,42,901 8,16,099 - 94,59,000
  Section 17(1) of the Income-Tax Act, 1961 

 (b)  Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-Tax Act, 1961 - - - -

 (c)  Profits in lieu of salary under Section 17(3) 
  Income-Tax Act, 1961 - - - - 
2 Stock Option - - - - 

3 Sweat Equity - - - - 

4 Commission - - - -  

  -  as % of profit - - - -  
  -  others, specify… - - - -  

5 Others, please specify – Retirals - 46,973 - 46,973

  Total 86,42,901 8,63,072  95,05,973

 C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD/MANAGER/WTD

 Type Section of the  Brief Details of Penalty/ Authority Appeal made,
  Companies Act Description Punishment/  [RD / NCLT/ if any
    Compounding COURT] (give Details)
    fees imposed

A.  COMPANY
 Penalty
 Punishment    None 
 Compounding
B.  DIRECTORS

 Penalty
 Punishment    None
 Compounding
C.  OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT
 Penalty
 Punishment    None
 Compounding

VII.   PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:
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ANNEXURE - F TO BOARD’S REPORT

Information pursuant to Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5, of The Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 and forming part of this Board’s Report for the financial Year ended on 
31st March, 2016.

(A) Name of employees employed for part of the year:

Name Age
(years)

Qualification Date of 
Joining

Designation
(Nature of 

Duty)

Gross 
Remuneration 

per annum
(` In lacs)

Experience
(years)

Last 
Employment

Arvind Shore 61 - PGDBM    
  Cybernetics
  Mgt.

- B. Sc. 
  Mechanical
  Engineering

22.01.2013 Chief 
Executive 

Officer

86.43 39 Walchandnagar
Industries Ltd.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors,

P. M. Patel 
Chairman
DIN : 00012138

Place : Vallabh Vidyanagar
Date : 27-04-2016
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The Directors of the Company – voluntarily present the Company’s Report on Corporate Governance for the Financial Year 
ended on 31st March, 2016.

INTRODUCTION
Corporate Governance is an ethically driven business process with values aimed at enhancing an organization’s wealth 
generating capacity. In other words, corporate governance is the acceptance by Management of the inalienable rights of 
shareholders as the true owners of the corporation and of their own role as trustees on behalf of the shareholders. It deals 
with conducting the affairs of a Company such that there is fairness to all stakeholders and that its actions benefit all the 
stakeholders. It is integral to the very existence of a company and strengthens investor’s confidence by ensuring company’s 
commitment to higher growth and profits.

It is about commitment to values, about ethical business conduct and about making a distinction between personal and 
corporate funds in the management of a company. The aim of “Good Corporate Governance” is to ensure commitment 
of the Board in managing the company in a transparent manner for maximizing long-term value of the Company for its 
shareholders and all other partners. It integrates all the participants involved in a process, which is economic, and at the 
same time social.

(1) Company’s Philosophy on Corporate Governance:
 Pursuant to the practice of the Good Corporate Governance, your Company is committed to meet the aspirations of 

all our stakeholders and believes in adopting the best corporate practices for ethical conduct of business.

 Your Company continues to maintain its industry leadership, by pursuing excellence in everything it does including 
standards of business conduct. The Company’s philosophy on Corporate Governance emanates from the principles of 
ethical governance and is aimed at conducting of business in an efficient and transparent manner and in meeting its 
obligations to shareholders and other stakeholders. This objective is achieved by adopting corporate practices based 
on principles of transparency, accountability, fairness and integrity to create long term sustainable value for all its 
stakeholders.

(2)  Board of Directors:
 The Company is managed by a Board of Directors consisting of highly qualified and experienced professionals from 

different fields, which formulates strategies, policies and reviews its performance periodically. 
 None of the Directors on the Board is a Member of more than 10 Committees and Chairman of more than 5 

Committees (as per Clause 49 (D) (ii) of Listing Agreement) across all the companies in which he is a Director. Necessary 
disclosures have been made by the Directors.

 Size and Composition of Board
 The present policy is to have an appropriate mix of non-executive and independent directors to maintain the 

independence of the Board in order to separate its functions of governance and management. The Board of Directors 
of the Company shall have an optimum combination of executive and non-executive directors with at least one woman 
director and not less than fifty percent of the Board comprising of non-executive directors.

 Composition of the Board as on 31st March, 2016:

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

 Category No. of Directors

Non-Executive & Non Independent 2
Directors including the Chairman

Independent Non-Executive Director 2

 Total 4

 As required under Section 149(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder, Ms. Reena P. Bhagwati, has 
been appointed as an Independent Director - Woman on the Board.

(3) BOARD MEETINGS AND PROCEDURES
 (A) Scheduling and Selection of Agenda items for Board Meetings
  i.   The meetings are being convened by giving appropriate advance notice after obtaining the approval of 

the Chairman of the Board. Detailed agenda, management reports and other explanatory statements are 
circulated in advance amongst the members for facilitating meaningful, informed and focused decisions. To 
address specific urgent need, meetings are also being called at shorter notice. The Board is also authorized 
to pass Resolution by circulation for all such matters, which are of utmost urgent nature.
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  ii.  Where it is not practical to attach any document or the agenda is of confidential nature, the same is placed on 
the table with the approval of the Chairman of the Board. In special and exceptional circumstances, additional 
or supplemental item(s) on the agenda are permitted. Sensitive subject matters are discussed at the meeting 
without written materials being circulated.

  iii.    The agenda papers are prepared by the officials concerned and submitted to the Chairman for his approval. 
Duly approved agenda papers are circulated amongst the Board Members by the Company Secretary or the 
person authorised by the Board in this regard.

  iv. Detailed presentations are made at the Board/Committee meetings covering finance, major business segments 
and operations of the Company and on Auditors’ Reports before taking on record the quarterly/half yearly/
annual financial results of the Company.

  v.   As per the convenience of the members of the Board, the Board Meetings are usually held at the Company’s 
Registered Office in Vallabh Vidyanagar, Dist. Anand or at Mumbai. 

  vi.     The members of the Board have complete access to all the information of the Company. The Board is also 
free to recommend inclusion of any matter in agenda for discussion. Senior Management Officials are called 
to provide additional inputs to the items discussed by the Board as and when necessary.

 (B) Recording minutes of proceedings at the Board Meeting:
  The minutes of the proceedings of each Board Meeting are recorded and the same are read in the next Board 

Meeting. The minutes of the proceedings of the meetings are entered in the Minutes Books and the same are 
signed by the Chairman as prescribed in the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder as well as per the 
Secretarial Standard.

 (C)  Compliance:
  The Company Secretary / person authorised by the Board while preparing the agenda notes is responsible for and 

is required to ensure adherence to all the applicable provisions of law, rules, regulations, guidelines etc.

 BOARD MEETINGS

 During the Financial Year 2015-16, 4 (four) Board Meetings were held on 30.04.2015, 13.08.2015, 28.10.2015, 29.01.2016 
and the gap between two Board meetings was well within the limit as prescribed by the Companies Act, 2013 and that 
of the applicable Secretarial Standards.

 The necessary quorum was present in all the meetings. Leave of absence was granted to concerned Directors who could 
not attend the respective Board Meeting.

 The details of Attendance of Directors at the Board Meetings and last Annual General Meeting are as under:

 Name of  Nature of  No. of Board  No. of Attendance
 Directors Directorship Meetings held  Board at AGM
   during the  Meetings 
   tenure of Attended 
   Directorship 

 Shri Pradip M. Patel  Non- 4 4 Yes
  Independent
  Non-Executive
  Director

 Shri Prashant C. Amin Non- 4 4 Yes
  Independent  
  Non-Executive  
  Director  

 Shri Chirayu R. Amin Independent 4 3 No
  Non-Executive   
  Director

 Ms. Reena P. Bhagwati Independent  4 1 Yes
  Non-Executive 
  -Woman 
  Director 
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 The Company did not have any material pecuniary relationship or transactions with the Independent Non-Executive 
Directors during the Financial Year 2015-16.

 (D) Disclosure regarding Directors retiring by rotation and being re-appointed:
  Shri Pradip M. Patel, Director retires by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible, offers 

himself for  re-appointment. 
  A brief resume and the profile of Shri Pradip M. Patel, Director retiring by rotation eligible for re-appointment at the 

ensuing Annual General Meeting of the Company are given in the notice of Annual General Meeting, annexed to 
this Annual Report.

 (E) Appointment of Independent Director
  As per Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013, resolutions have been proposed for the appointment of Shri Jal 

Ratanshaw Patel, as an Independent Director not liable to retire by rotation at ensuing Annual General Meeting.
  Brief profile of the director is attached to the notice.
  The terms and conditions for appointment of all the Independent Directors is disclosed on the website of the 

Company.
 (F)  Separate Meeting of Independent Directors
  The separate meeting of Independent Directors was held on 21st March, 2016 to review the performance of Non-

Independent Directors and the Board as a whole; review the performance of the Chairperson of the Company. In 
that	meeting,	Independent	Directors	have	reviewed	the	flow	and	availability	of	information	from	the	Management	
to the Board.

 (G)  Familiarisation Programme for Independent Directors
  On appointment, the concerned Director is issued a Letter of Appointment setting out in detail, the terms of 

appointment, duties, responsibilities and expected time commitments. During the first Board Meeting attended, 
each newly appointed Independent Director is taken through a formal induction program including the presentation 
from the Chairman on the Company’s manufacturing, marketing, finance and other important aspects. The Company 
Secretary briefs the Director about their legal and regulatory responsibilities as a Director. The Familiarization 
Programme for Independent Directors includes a detailed presentation by Business and Functional Heads, visit to 
the manufacturing site etc.

 (H)  Performance Evaluation
  The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has laid down the criteria for performance evaluation of the Individual 

Directors and the Board. The framework of performance evaluation of the Independent Directors will capture the 
following points:

   Leadership & stewardship abilities;
   Contributing to clearly define corporate objectives & plans;
   Communication of expectations & concerns clearly with subordinates;
   Obtain adequate, relevant & timely information from external sources; 
   Review & approval achievement of strategic and operational plans, objectives, budgets;
   Regular monitoring of corporate results against projections;
   Identify, monitor & mitigate significant corporate risks;
   Assess policies, structures & procedures;
   Direct, monitor & evaluate KMPs, senior officials;
    Review management’s succession plan;
   Effective meetings;
   Assuring appropriate board size, composition, independence, structure;
   Clearly defining roles & monitoring activities of committees; and
   Review of corporation’s ethical conduct.

  The evaluation of performance of Independent Directors was carried out by the entire Board by means of the replies 
given / observations made by all the Independent Directors on the set of questions which brought out the key 
attributes of the Directors quality of interactions among them and its effectiveness.

  For other Directors, a structured questionnaire was prepared after taking into consideration inputs received from 
the Directors, covering various aspects of the Board’s functioning such as adequacy of the composition of the Board 
and its Committees, Board culture, execution and performance of specific duties, obligations and governance.
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  A separate exercise was carried out to evaluate the performance of individual Directors including the Chairman of 
the Board, who were evaluated on parameters such as level of engagement and contribution, independence of 
judgement, safeguarding the interest of the Company and its minority shareholders etc. The performance evaluation 
of the Chairman and the Non Independent Directors was carried out by the Independent Directors. The Directors 
expressed their satisfaction with the evaluation process.

(4) Code of Conduct

 The Board of Directors of the Company has laid down a “Code of Conduct” for all Board Members including Independent 
Directors and Members of Senior Management of the Company. The Board Members (including Independent Directors) 
and Senior Management have affirmed compliance with the “Code of Conduct” for the year ended 31st March, 2016.

(5) Whistle Blower Policy

 We have established the mechanism for our employees to report concerns about the unethical behavior, actual and 
suspected fraud or violation of our code of conduct and ethics policy. It also provides ethical safeguards against victimization 
of employees who avail of the mechanism, and also allows direct access to the Chairperson of the Audit Committee in 
exceptional cases. We further affirm that no employee has been further denied to the Audit Committee.

 The details of such mechanism is communicated to all the directors and employees and is also disclosed on the website 
of the Company http://www.eleconepc.com/contact-us.

(6) Board Committees

 The Board has already constituted the mandatory committees. In addition to that the Board has constituted two more 
Committees for better governance and accountability in the performance of the Company. The Board has Four Committees 
as on 31st March, 2016:

 (a) Audit Committee
 (b) Corporate Social Responsibility Committee
 (c) Nomination and Remuneration Committee
 (d) Risk Management Committee

 The terms of reference of these Committees are determined by the Board and their relevance reviewed from time to time. 
Meetings of each of these Committees are convened by the respective Chairman of the Committee, who also informs the 
Board about the summary of discussions held in the Committee Meetings. The Minutes of the Committee Meetings are 
sent to all Directors individually and tabled at the Board Meetings.

 (a) Audit Committee:-

  The Audit Committee was constituted in the year 2014. The Committee is governed by a Charter which is in line 
with the regulatory requirements mandated by Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013. The primary objective of 
the Committee is to monitor and provide an effective supervision of the Management’s financial reporting process, 
to ensure accurate and timely disclosures, with the highest levels of transparency, integrity and quality of financial 
reporting. The Committee oversees the work carried out in the financial reporting process by the Management, the 
internal auditor, the statutory auditor and the cost auditor and notes the processes and safeguards employed by 
each of them.

  Audit Committee has been reconstituted in the Board Meeting held on 26th April, 2016 comprising of Three 
Independent Directors and one Non-Independent Director as Members thereof. The details of the members are as 
follows:

 Name of Members Designation Category

 Shri Jal R. Patel Chairman Independent & Non-Executive Director

 Shri Prashant C. Amin Member Non-independent & Non-Executive Director

 Ms. Reena P. Bhagwati  Member  Independent & Non-Executive Director

 Shri Chirayu R. Amin Member Independent & Non-Executive Director
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  Audit Committee attendance during the Financial Year 2015-16:
  During the year, four meetings of the Audit Committee were held – on 30.04.2015, 13.08.2015, 28.10.2015 and 

29.01.2016. The following members were present at the meeting.

  The President (Operations), CEO, CFO, Statutory Auditors, Internal Auditors are permanent invitees to the meeting 
and attended & participated at the meetings of the Committee. Smt. Bharti Isarani, Company Secretary of the 
Company is the Secretary of the Committee and was present at all the above meetings except the meeting held on 
29.01.2016.

 (b) Nomination and Remuneration Committee:-
  In compliance with the Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors has constituted the “Nomination 

and Remuneration Committee” in its meeting. The Company has formulated the Nomination and Remuneration 
Policy, which was approved by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee followed by the approval of the Board 
of Directors. 

  Nomination and Remuneration Committee has been constituted to recommend the remuneration package of 
Directors and KMPs based on the performance and defined criteria.

  Terms of reference of Nomination and Remuneration Committee are as under:-
	 	 •	 Formulation	of	the	criteria	for	determining	qualifications,	positive	attributes	and	independence	of	a	director	

and recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration of the directors, key managerial personnel 
and other employees; 

	 	 •	 Formulation	of	criteria	for	evaluation	of	Independent	Directors	and	the	Board;	
	 	 •	 Devising	a	policy	on	Board	diversity;	
	 	 •	 Identifying	persons	who	are	qualified	to	become	directors	and	who	may	be	appointed	in	senior	management	

in accordance with the criteria laid down, and recommend to the Board their appointment and removal. The 
company shall disclose the remuneration policy and the evaluation criteria in its Annual Report.

  Our Nomination & Remuneration Committee has been reconstituted in the Board Meeting held on 26th April, 2016 
comprising of 4 (Four) Non-Executive Directors of the Company as the Members thereof. Shri Jal R. Patel has been 
appointed as a Chairman of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee:

Name of Members  No. of Meetings

   Held  Attended

Shri Prashant C. Amin 4  4

Shri Chirayu R. Amin 4  3

Ms. Reena P. Bhagwati 4  1

 Name of Members Designation Category

 Shri Jal R. Patel Chairman Independent & Non-Executive Director

 Shri Pradip M. Patel Member Non- Non-Independent & Non-Executive Director

 Ms. Reena P. Bhagwati Member Independent & Non-Executive Director

 Shri Chirayu R. Amin  Member Independent & Non-Executive Director

  Nomination and Remuneration Committee attendance during the Financial Year 2015-16:
  During the year, only one meeting of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee was held on 30th April, 2015. 

The following members were present at said meeting:-

Name of Members  No. of Meeting
   Held  Attended
Shri Chirayu R. Amin 1  1

Shri Pradip M. Patel 1  1

Ms. Reena P. Bhagwati 1  -

  Smt. Bharti Isarani, Company Secretary of the Company acted as the Secretary of the Committee.

  (i) Nomination & Remuneration Policy
   The Company has adopted a Policy relating to the remuneration for Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and 

other employees of the Company. 
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Name of Directors Sitting fees
   for 2015-16
Shri Pradip M. Patel 1,12,500
Shri Chirayu R. Amin 1,62,500 
Shri Prashant C. Amin 2,05,000
Ms. Reena P. Bhagwati 50,000

(Amt. in `)

   b. Executive Directors
    During the year under review, the Company does not have any Executive Director on its Board. 

  (c) Corporate Social Responsibility Committee 
   In the Board Meeting held on 26th April, 2016, the Board of Directors of the Company has reconstituted a    

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee (“CSR Committee”) consisting of Four Members.

   Now, the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee comprises of the following Members:

 Name of Members Designation Category

 Shri Pradip M. Patel  Chairman Non-Independent & Non-Executive Director

 Shri Prashant C. Amin  Member Non-Independent & Non-Executive Director 

 Shri Chirayu R. Amin Member Independent & Non-Executive Director

 Shri Jal R. Patel Member Independent & Non-Executive Director

   Corporate Social Responsibility Committee attendance during the Financial Year 2015-16:

   During the year, only one meeting of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee was held on 30th April, 
2015. The following members were present at the meeting.

   Smt. Bharti Isarani, Company Secretary of the Company acted as the Secretary of the Committee. 

Name of Members  No. of Meeting
   Held  Attended
Shri Chirayu R. Amin 1  1

Shri Prashant C. Amin 1  1

Shri Pradip M. Patel 1  1

   The Company’s remuneration policy was driven by the success and performance of the managerial personnel. 
While reviewing the remuneration of managerial personnel, the Committee takes into account the following:

	 	 	 •		 Financial	position	of	the	Company
	 	 	 •		 Scales	prevailing	in	the	industry
	 	 	 •		 Appointee’s	qualification	and	expertise
	 	 	 •		 Past	performance
	 	 	 •	 Past	remuneration	etc.

  (ii)  Remuneration of Directors
   a. Non-Executive Directors
    During the year under review, the Non-Executive Directors do not draw any remuneration from the 

Company other than the sitting fees. The sitting fees paid to Non-Executive Directors for attending Board 
and Committee Meetings during the year 2015-16 is as follows:

   Note :  The above Sitting Fees excludes re-imbursement of the expenses incurred by Directors to attend the   
       Meetings.

(6)  Risk Management Committee
 The Company has constituted a Risk Management Committee (RMC) on 30th April, 2015 for framing, implementing and 

monitoring the risk management policy of the Company. The terms of reference of the Committee are:

 a) Overseeing key risks, including strategic, financial, operational and compliance risks.
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 Year Location Date Day Time No. of Special
      Resolution passed

 2012-13 C/o Elecon Engineering  14-08-2013 Wednesday 10.45 a.m. 1 (One)
  Company Limited
  Anand-Sojitra Road
  Vallabh Vidyanagar 388 120.

 2013-14 C/o Elecon Engineering  04-08-2014 Monday 2.00 p.m 2 (Two)
  Company Limited
  Anand-Sojitra Road
  Vallabh Vidyanagar 388 120.

 2014-15 C/o Elecon Engineering  13-08-2015 Thursday 12.30 p.m. -
  Company Limited
  Anand-Sojitra Road
  Vallabh Vidyanagar 388 120.

 Name of Members Category

 Shri Pradip M. Patel Non-Independent & Non-Executive Director
 Shri Prashant C. Amin Non-Independent & Non-Executive Director
 Shri Arvind Shore Chief Executive Officer

 Smt. Bharti Isarani, Company Secretary is the Compliance Officer and Secretary of the Committee. No Meeting of the 
Committee was held, during the financial year.

(7) Details of General Meetings

 Location, date and time of Annual General Meetings held during last 3 years:

 During the year ended on 31st March, 2016, no resolution has been passed by the members through Postal 
Ballot.

(8) Disclosures on Materially Significant Related Party Transactions
 Full disclosure of related party transactions as per Accounting Standard - 18 issued by the Institute of Chartered 

Accountants of India are given under Note No. 32 of Notes to Financial Statements.

(9) Details of Non-compliance by the Company and penalties, strictures imposed on the Company by the Registrar 
of Companies or any Statutory Authorities during the last three years

 The Company has complied with the requirements of Registrar of Companies and Statutory Authorities on all matters 
during the last three years. 

 All Returns/Reports were filed within stipulated time with all the statutory authorities.
 No penalties or strictures were imposed by the Registrar of Companies or any other Statutory Authorities during the 

last three years.

(10)   Disclosure of Accounting Treatment
 In the preparation of the financial statements, the Company has followed the Accounting Standards issued by the ICAI. 

The significant accounting policies applied in preparation and presentation of financial statements has been set out in 
Note No. 2 of Notes to Financial Statements.

 b) Assisting the Board in framing, implementing and monitoring the risk management plan for the Company and 
reviewing and guiding the risk policy.

 c) Developing risk management policy and risk management system/framework for the Company.

 The composition of the Committee members are given below:

(11) General Shareholders Information 

 a)  Annual General Meeting
  Date and Time   : Tuesday, 26th July, 2016 at 12.15p.m.
  Venue    : Elecon Engineering Co. Limited,    
                     Anand-Sojitra Road,
           Vallabh Vidyanagar – 388 120, Gujarat.
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(12) Equity Shareholding Pattern as on 31-03-2016

 Category No. of Equity Shares held (%) of total

 Elecon Engineering Company Limited 2,70,170 60.49
 Promoters - Individual 14,086 3.15
                    Company 1,62,353 36.36

 TOTAL  4,46,609 100.00

 In addition to the Equity, your Company has allotted 1,27,32,000 Non-Cumulative Non-Convertible Redeemable 
Preference Shares of ` 100/- each to Elecon Engineering Company Limited. 

 Consequently, Elecon Engineering Company Limited holds 99.86% in the paid-up share capital of the Company

(13) Chairman of the Board
 No Separate office is maintained for Non-Executive Chairman and therefore during the year under review, no expenses 

were incurred in connection therewith.

(14) Shareholder rights to receive Financial Results
 The financial results of the Company for every annual are available to the shareholders.

(15)  Postal Ballot
 The provisions relating to Postal Ballot will be complied with in respect of matters where applicable.

(16)  Audit Qualifications

 During the year under review, there was no audit qualification in the Company’s financial statements. The Company 
continues to adopt best practices to ensure the regime of unqualified financial statements.

 b)  Financial Calendar   : April 01 to March 31

 c)  Plant Locations   : Works
        1.  Material Handling Equipment Division (MHE)
                 Anand -Sojitra Road,
             Vallabh Vidyanagar - 388 120 Gujarat.

        2.   B/H Eimco Shed
                    Anand-Sojitra Road, Vallabh Vidyanagar -388 120.
                    Dist : Anand, Gujarat.

 Address of Regd. Office      : C/o Elecon Engineering Company Limited
        Anand -Sojitra Road, 
        Vallabh Vidyanagar - 388 120. Gujarat

 Internet website      : www.eleconepc.com

 Address for Correspondence  : Smt. Bharti L. Isarani
         Company Secretary

        Elecon EPC Projects Limited
        C/o Elecon Engineering Company Limited
        Anand -Sojitra Road,
        Vallabh Vidyanagar - 388 120. Gujarat
        Tel. No. (02692) 230166, 237016, 227097
        Fax No. (02692) 227020
        E-mail : blisarani@eleconepc.com

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors,

P. M. Patel 
Chairman
DIN : 00012138

Place : Vallabh Vidyanagar
Date : 27-04-2016
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To,
The Members of,
ELECON EPC PROJECTS LTD.,
Vallabh Vidyanagar.

Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements 
of ELECON EPC PROJECTS LIMITED, ( the “Company” ), 
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2016, 
the Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow Statement 
for the year then ended and a summary of significant 
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial 
Statements
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the 
matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 
2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these 
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the 
financial	position,	financial	performance	and	cash	flows	of	
the Company in accordance with the accounting principles 
generally accepted in India, including the Accounting 
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read 
with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 
This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate 
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of 
the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and 
for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; 
selection and application of appropriate accounting 
policies; making judgments and estimates that are 
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that 
were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the 
preparation and presentation of the financial statements 
that give a true and fair view and are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these 
financial statements based on our audit.
We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the 
accounting and auditing standards and matters which 
are required to be included in the audit report under the 
provisions of the Act and the Rules made there under.
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards 
on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. 
Those Standards require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements are free from material misstatement. 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on 

the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the 
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 
assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control 
relevant to the Company’s preparation of the financial 
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. 
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the 
accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as 
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial 
statements. 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion on the financial statements
Opinion
In our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid 
financial statements give the information required by the 
Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view 
in conformity with the accounting principles generally 
accepted in India:
(a)  in the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of 

affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2016;
(b)  in the case of the Statement of Profit and Loss, of 

the Loss for the year ended on that date; and
(c)  in the case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the cash 

flows	for	the	year	ended	on	that	date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) 

Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central 
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of 
section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure A, a 
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 & 
4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report 
that:

 a. we have sought and obtained all the information 
and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the 
purpose of our audit;

 b. in our opinion proper books of account as 
required by law have been kept by the Company 
so far as it appears from our examination of those 
books;

 c. the Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and 
Loss, and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by 
this Report are in agreement with the books of 
account;

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements 
comply with the Accounting Standards specified 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
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For  THACKER BUTALA DESAI                                       
Chartered Accountants

                                          M. T.  DESAI                 
      Partner 
Place : Vallabh Vidyanagar Membership No. : 030911
Date :  27-04-2016  Firm Regn. No. 110864W

under section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of 
the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.  

e. on the basis of written representations received 
from the directors as on March 31, 2016, and 
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none 
of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 
2016, from being appointed as a director in 
terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f.  In our opinion, the company has, in all material 
respects, an adequate internal financial control 
with respect to the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls over financial reporting of 
the Company and the operating effectiveness 
of such controls, refer to our separate report in 
“Annexure B”; and

g. With respect to the other matters to be included 
in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 
2014, in our opinion and to the best of our 
information and according to the explanations 
given to us:

  i. The Company has disclosed the impact of 
pending litigations on its financial position 
in its financial statements – Refer Note 28 to 
the financial statements; 

  ii. The Company did not have any long-term 
contracts including derivative contracts for 
which there were any material foreseeable 
losses.

  iii. There has been no delay in transferring 
amounts, required to be transferred to the 
Investor Education and Protection Fund by 
the Company.
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(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements‘ section of our report of even date)

(i) (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative details and situation 
of its fixed assets.

 (b) We have been informed that, a portion of the Fixed Assets have been physically verified by the management 
during the year in accordance with a programme of verification in a phased manner and no material 
discrepancies were noticed on such verification. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is 
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. 

 (c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records 
of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the Company. 

(ii) (a) As explained to us, inventories were physically verified by the management during the year.

 (b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the procedures of physical 
verification of inventories followed by the management were reasonable and adequate in relation to the size 
of the Company and the nature of its business.

 (c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has maintained 
proper records of its inventories and discrepancies noticed on physical verification have been properly dealt 
with in the books of account of the Company.

(iii) (a) The Company has not granted loan to any party covered in the register maintained under section 189 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’). Accordingly, this clause regarding rate of interest and other terms and 
conditions on which the loan had been granted is not applicable.

 (b) In view of clause (iii) (a) above, this clause regarding receipt of principal amount and interest thereon is not 
applicable.

 (c) In view of (iii) (a) above, this clause regarding overdue amounts of such loans and interest thereon is not 
applicable.

(iv) According to information and explanations given to us , the Company has complied with the provisions of section 
185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of loans, investments, guarantees and security..

(v) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not invited deposits 
from the public during the year. Therefore, provisions of the clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable to the 
Company. 

(vi) We have broadly reviewed the books of account and records maintained by the Company pursuant to the Companies 
(Cost Accounting Records) Rules, 2011 prescribed by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records 
under Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and are of the opinion that prima facie the prescribed accounts and 
records have been made and maintained.  We have, however, not made a detailed examination of the records with a 
view to determining whether they are accurate or complete.  

(vii) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory dues, the Company has 
generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including Provident Fund, Income Tax, Wealth 
Tax, Sales Tax, Custom Duty, Excise Duty, VAT, Service Tax, Cess and other material statutory dues applicable to 
it with appropriate authorities.

  According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory dues, there were no 
undisputed amount payable in respect of Provident Fund, Income Tax, Wealth Tax, Sales Tax, Custom Duty, Excise 
Duty, VAT, Service Tax, Cess and other material statutory dues in arrears as at March 31, 2016 for a period of 
more than six months from the date they became payable. 

 (b) According to information and explanations given to us, the Company has not paid the following statutory dues 
on account of the demand being disputed by the Company.

ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
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(viii) According to our audit procedure and on the basis of information and explanations given by the management, the 
Company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to any Financial Institution and Bank. The Company has not issued 
any Debenture during the year under review. 

(ix) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments). 
The term loans raised during the year have been utilized for the purpose for which they were obtained.

(x) Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of the financial statement 
and as per information and explanations given by the management, no material frauds on or by the Company were 
noticed or reported during the year under review.  

(xi) According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of the records of the Company, 
the Company has paid/provided for managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated 
by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act. 

(xii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a nidhi company. 
Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable. 

(xiii) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the Company, 
transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and 
details of such transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting 
standards. 

(xiv) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not made any preferential allotment or 
private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under review. 

(xv) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the Company, 
the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, 
paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable. 

(xvi) This clause of the Caro 2016 is not applicable to the Company as the company is not required to be registered under 
section 45-lA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

For  THACKER BUTALA DESAI
Chartered Accountants

M. T. DESAI 
    Partner
Place : Vallabh Vidyanagar  Membership No. : 030911
Date : 27-04-2016   Firm Regn. No. 110864W

Sr.
No.

Name of Statute Nature
of dues

Amount
`

Period to which
the amount

relates

Forum where
the Dispute is

pending

1. Central Excise Act, 1944
and Service Tax Act.

Excise Duty, Service
Tax &  Penalties

5043.77
Lacs

1988-89 to 1993-94
& 2006-07 to 2013-14

CESTAT
Ahmedabad

2. Central Excise Act, 1944 and 
Service Tax.

Service Tax, & 
Penalties

89.98 
Lacs

2007-2008 & 
2009-2014 

Central Excise 
Commissioner 
(Appeal), Vadodara

3. Central Sales Tax  Act, 1956 
& Sales Tax Acts of various 
States.

Sales Tax / Work 
Contract Tax

233.39 
Lacs

1992-93 Odisha High Court

4. Central Sales Tax Act, 1956 
& Sales Tax Acts of various 
States.

Sales Tax / Work 
Contract Tax

453.27 
Lacs

2005-06 to 
2008-09

Dy. Commissioner 
of Commercial Tax, 
Maharashtra

5. Central Sales Tax Act, 1956 
& Sales Tax Acts of various 
States.

Sales Tax / Work 
Contract Tax

482.53 
Lacs

2009-12 Commissioner, 
Of Commercial Tax, 
West Bengal
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(Referred to in paragraph 2 (f ) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’  section of our report of even 
date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 
2013 (“the Act”) 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of ELECON EPC PROJECTS LIMITED (“the Company”) 
as of March 31, 2016 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that 
date. 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal 
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal 
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute 
of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of 
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its 
business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds 
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial 
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting based on our 
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial 
Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an 
audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and 
the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and 
if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls 
system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial 
reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that 
a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based 
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion 
on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance 
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting 
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately 
and	 fairly	 reflect	 the	 transactions	and	dispositions	of	 the	assets	of	 the	company;	 (2)	provide	 reasonable	assurance	 that	
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with 
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention 
or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect 
on the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion 
or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. 

ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
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Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to 
the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, 
or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial 
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2016, based 
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components 
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by 
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For  THACKER BUTALA DESAI
Chartered Accountants

M. T. DESAI 
    Partner
Place : Vallabh Vidyanagar  Membership No. : 030911
Date : 27-04-2016   Firm Regn. No. 110864W
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   (` in Lacs)

         As at  As at
     Notes  31st March, 2016   31st March, 2015

 I.       EQUITY AND LIABILITIES       

 1) SHAREHOLDERS’ FUNDS 
  (a)  Share Capital     3   12,776.66   12,776.66 
   (b)  Reserves and Surplus     4   7,586.23   9,073.71  

               20,362.89   21,850.37  
 2) NON - CURRENT LIABILITIES    
   (a)  Long-term borrowings     5   -     246.14 
   (b)  Deferred Tax liabilities (Net)     6   -     333.89 
   (c)  Other Long term liabilities     7   7,192.98   7,167.84 
   (d)  Long-term provisions     8   146.34   133.57 

                 7,339.32   7,881.44  

 3) CURRENT LIABILITIES          
   (a)  Short-Term Borrowings     9    21,462.88   16,634.81 
   (b)  Trade payables       32,332.91   27,538.51 
   (c)  Other current liabilities     10    20,394.41   24,164.27 
   (d)  Short-term provisions     11    23.28   21.97   

            74,213.48   68,359.56 

    TOTAL          1,01,915.69   98,091.37   

II. ASSETS    

 1)  NON - CURRENT ASSETS
  (a)  Fixed Assets     12 
    (i)  Tangible assets      5,202.56   6,874.76 
    (ii)  Intangible assets      319.33   282.13 
    (iii)  Capital work-in-progress     148.91   180.04    

            5,670.80   7,336.93  
   (b)  Non-current investments      -     -   
  (c)  Deferred Tax assets (Net)     6   454.52   -   
  (d)  Long-term loans and advances    13   1,156.08   1,174.42 
  (e)  Other non-current assets     14   6,433.80   5,295.66   

            13,715.20   13,807.01
 2)  CURRENT ASSETS     
   (a)  Current investments      -     -   
   (b)  Inventories     15   12,379.43   12,080.60 
  (c)  Trade receivables     16   66,862.18   63,877.84 
  (d)  Cash and cash equivalents     17   24.74   311.43 
  (e) Short-term loans and advances    18   8,154.13   7,867.72 
  (f )  Other current assets     19   780.01   146.77      

            88,200.49   84,284.36  

       TOTAL          1,01,915.69   98,091.37

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES ON ACCOUNTS 2 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached    

For and on behalf of  For and on behalf of the Board of Directors,
THACKER BUTALA DESAI    
Chartered Accountants   
 P. M. Patel  P. C. Amin
 Director   Director 
M. T. Desai DIN : 00012138  DIN : 01056652 
Partner 
M. No. 030911 Rajat Jain Bharti Isarani
Firm Regi. No. 110864W Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place : Vallabh Vidyanagar Place : Vallabh Vidyanagar
Date : 27-04-2016 Date : 26-04-2016

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2016
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(` in Lacs)

       Year Ended Year Ended
    Notes 31stMarch, 2016   31stMarch, 2015
          
I. Revenue from operations    20 
 a)  Sale of Products (Gross)       44,300.81  47,153.19  
  Less :  Excise Duty        (3,446.59) (3,148.95)  

   Sale of Products (Net)         40,854.22  44,004.24   

  b)  Sales of Services         6,504.51  6,864.23

  c)  Other Operating Revenues       595.62   874.18

   Total (a+b+c)           47,954.35   51,742.65 

II.  Other Income  21       250.89   271.59 

III. Total Revenue (I + II)         48,205.24   52,014.24   

IV.  Expenses:
 a.  Cost of materials consumed  22    26,162.54   27,778.30 
 b.  Changes in inventories of finished goods,  23    (376.76)  1,638.30
  work-in progress and Stock-in-Trade 
  c. Manufacturing expenses and Erection Charges  24    12,185.68   9,378.91
  d.  Employee benefits expense  25   3,076.00   2,798.28
  e.  Finance costs    26   2,701.83   2,868.04
  f.  Depreciation and amortization expense    1,054.46   1,170.80
 g.  Other expenses    27   5,677.90   6,053.42

  Total Expenses (a to g)         50,481.65   51,686.05

V.  PROFIT BEFORE EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS & TAX (III-IV)      (2,276.41)  328.19  
VI.   EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS     -     -    
VII.  PROFIT BEFORE TAX (V-VI)       (2,276.41)  328.19
VIII.  Tax expense :     

 (a)  Current Tax      -     146.00 
 (b)  Deferred Tax     (788.41)  (71.42)
 (c)  Short / (Excess) provision for tax relating to prior years   (0.52)  -

IX.  PROFIT AFTER TAX (VII-VIII)        (1,487.48)  253.61  
X.  Earnings per Equity Share :
 (1) Basic      (333.06)  56.79 
 (2) Diluted      (333.06)  56.79

 Face Value Per Share (`)    10.00 10.00

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES ON ACCOUNTS 2
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2016

As per our report of even date attached    

For and on behalf of  For and on behalf of the Board of Directors,
THACKER BUTALA DESAI    
Chartered Accountants   
 P. M. Patel  P. C. Amin
 Director   Director 
M. T. Desai DIN : 00012138  DIN : 01056652 
Partner 
M. No. 030911 Rajat Jain Bharti Isarani
Firm Regi. No. 110864W Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place : Vallabh Vidyanagar Place : Vallabh Vidyanagar
Date : 27-04-2016 Date : 26-04-2016
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   (` in Lacs)

 Particulars  As on 31-03-2016  As on 31-03-2015
 Amount  Amount Amount  Amount

[A] CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES     
 1. Net Profit before Tax   (2,276.41)   328.19 
 2.  Adjustments for:    
  (i)    Depreciation and Amortisation  1,054.46    1,170.80  
  (ii)   Finance Cost  2,701.83    2,868.04  
  (iii)  Loss / (Profit) on Sale of Fixed Assets (Net)  (43.06)   (1.79) 
  (iv)  Interest Income  (62.04)   (9.04) 
  (v)   Bad Debts Written Off  -     3,651.19   75.00   4,103.01

  NET CASH GENERATED BY OPERATING   1,374.78    4,431.20 
  ACTIVITIES     

 3. Adjustments for Working Capital changes :
  [i] Trade & Other Receivables
   *  Trade receivables  (2,984.34)   1,248.83 
            *  Loans and Advances  (2,039.45)   1,590.67

  [ii]   Trade & Other payables   
   *  Trade payables  4,794.40    2,654.15 
   *  Other payables  (3,253.66)   (17,447.32)
  [iii] Inventories     (298.83)  (3,781.88)  2,108.81   (9,844.86)

  CASH GENERATED/(USED IN) FROM OPERATIONS      (2,407.10)   (5,413.66) 

 4. Less:  Direct Taxes Paid     -      -

 NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES [A]      (2,407.10)   (5,413.66)

[B] CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES     
 1.  Purchase of Fixed Assets  (154.76)   (143.91)
 2. Sale of Fixed Assets  809.47    345.06 
 3. Slump Sale consideration transferred to Pref. Share Capital  -      12,732.00 
 4. Interest Received  62.04    9.04 

 NET CASH GENERATED FROM / (USED IN)     716.75   716.75   12,942.19   12,942.19
 INVESTING ACTIVITIES [B]

[C] CASHFLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES     
 1. Proceeds from Long Term borrowings  -      - 
 2.  Repayments against Long Term Borrowings  (738.43)   (775.77)
 3.  Short Term Borrowings (Net)  4,828.07    (3,823.16)
 4.  Finance cost Paid  (2,685.98)   (2,876.45)
 5.  Dividends Paid (incl. tax thereon)  -      -   

 NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES [C]     1,403.66   1,403.66   (7,475.38)  (7,475.38)   

[D] NET INCR./(DECR.) IN CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS [A+B+C]      (286.69)   53.15

[E] Cash & Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year     311.43    258.28

[F] Cash & Cash Equivalents at the end of the year     24.74    311.43 

CASH FLOW STATEMENT 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2016
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   (` in Lacs)

 Particulars  As on 31-03-2016  As on 31-03-2015
 Amount  Amount Amount  Amount

1. Components of Cash & Cash Equivalents :- 
 Cash on hand   0.52  0.54

 Balances with banks   

  In Current Accounts   13.46   195.76

     In Fixed Deposit Account   10.76   115.13

  Unclaimed Dividend Account  -  -

     24.74   311.43

2.  The	above	cash	flow	statement	has	been	prepared	under	the	“Indirect	Method”	as	set	out	in	the	Accounting	Standard	-	3	on	Cash	
Flow Statement notified in Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006.

CASH FLOW STATEMENT 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2016

For and on behalf of  For and on behalf of the Board of Directors,
THACKER BUTALA DESAI    
Chartered Accountants   
 P. M. Patel  P. C. Amin
 Director   Director 
M. T. Desai DIN : 00012138  DIN : 01056652 
Partner 
M. No. 030911 Rajat Jain Bharti Isarani
Firm Regi. No. 110864W Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place : Vallabh Vidyanagar Place : Vallabh Vidyanagar
Date : 27-04-2016 Date : 26-04-2016
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES & NOTES ON ACCOUNTS TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR 
THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2016        

1. BASIS OF ACCOUNTING AND PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Generally Accepted Accounting 

Principles in India (Indian GAAP) to comply with the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and the relevant provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“the 2013 Act”) / Companies Act, 1956 (“the 1956 Act”), as applicable.

 The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements are consistent with those followed in 
the previous year.        

 The preparation  of the financial statements in conformity with  Indian GAAP  requires the Management to make 
estimates and assumptions considered in the reported amounts of assets and liabilities (including contingent 
liabilities) and the reported income and expenses during the year.  The Management believes that the estimates 
used in preparation of the financial statements are prudent and reasonable.  Future results could differ due to these 
estimates and the differences between the actual results and the estimates are recognised in the periods in which 
the results are known / materialise. 

2.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
 a) Fixed Assets

  i) Tangible Assets: Fixed Assets are recorded at cost of acquisition / construction less accumulated 
depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Cost comprises of the purchase price and attributable cost of 
bringing the Assets to its working condition for its intended use, but excludes Cenvat / service tax / VAT 
credit availed.  

  ii) Intangible Assets: Intangible Assets are recognised when it is probable that the future economic benefits 
that	are	attributable	to	the	asset	will	flow	to	the	enterprise	and	the	cost	of	the	asset	can	be	measured	
reliably. 

 b) Borrowing Cost
  Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the Company incurs in connection with the borrowing 

of funds and exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowing to the extent that they are regarded 
as an adjustment to interest costs.      

  Financing costs relating to borrowed funds attributable to construction or acquisition of fixed assets for the 
period up to the completion of construction or acquisition of fixed assets are included in the cost of the assets 
to which they relate.      

 c) Depreciation & Amortisation
   Depreciable amount for assets is the cost of an asset, or other amount substituted for cost, less its estimated 

residual value. Depreciation on tangible fixed assets has been provided on the straight-line method on Plant & 
machineries and on written down value on all other fixed assets as per the useful life prescribed in Schedule II 
to The Companies Act, 2013.

  Intangible assets are amortised using the straight-line method over estimated useful life as under:-  
  i)  Software & Licenses: over a period of six years     
  ii)  Technical know-how : over a period of six years from the date of actual production.

 d) Inventories
  Inventories are valued at the lower of cost (e.g. on FIFO / weighted average basis) and the net realisable value 

after providing for obsolescence and other losses, where considered necessary. Cost includes all charges in 
bringing the goods to the point of sale, including octroi and other levies, transit insurance and receiving 
charges. Work-in-progress and finished goods include appropriate proportion of overheads and, where 
applicable, excise duty.    The cost of inventories is arrived at on the following basis:

  Raw Materials and stores : Weighted Average Cost.
  Stock-in-process   : Raw Materials at Weighted Average Cost & absorption of Labour and Overheads. 
  Finished Goods    : Raw Materials at Weighted Average Cost & absorption of Labour and Overheads. 

 e) Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets 
  Provisions involving substantial degree of estimation in measurement are recognized when there is a present 

obligation	as	a	result	of	past	events	and	it	 is	probable	that	there	will	be	an	outflow	of	resources.	Contingent	
liabilities are not recognized but are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. Contingent assets are 
neither recognized nor disclosed in the financial statements.
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 f) Revenue Recognition
  i)  Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of goods 

are transferred to the customer, which is generally on dispatch of goods. Sales are net of discounts, VAT/
sales tax and returns; excise duties collected.

  ii)  Income on turnkey contracts (including erection charges) is accounted for on the basis of billings made 
on customers against mutually agreed billing schedules.      

   Advances received from customers in respect of contracts, which are not in relation to work performed 
thereon, are shown as “Advance from Customers”.      

   Amounts retained by customers until satisfaction of conditions specified in the contract for release of 
such	amounts	are		reflected	as	Sundry	debtors.	 	 	 	 	 	

   Credits are taken for claims in respect of cost escalation and extra work as and when and to the extent 
admitted by customers.

  iii)   Interest revenues are recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding 
and the rate applicable.      

  iv)  Dividend from investments in Shares is accounted for when the right to receive dividend is established.
  v)  Export incentives are accounted for as and when the claims thereof have been admitted by the 

authorities. 
  vi)  Revenue in respect of other income is recognised when a reasonable certainty as to its realisation 

exists. 
 g) Foreign Currency Transactions
   Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing at the time of 

the  transaction.      
  Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies at the year-end are restated at the year-end rates. In case 

of items, which are covered by forward exchange contracts, the difference between the year-end rate and the 
rate on the date of contract is recognised as exchange difference and the premium paid on forward contracts 
is recognised over the life of the contract.      

  Non-monetary foreign currency items are carried at cost.      
  Any income or expense on account of exchange difference either on settlement or on translation is recognized 

in the statement of profit and loss.      

 h) Retirement Benefits
  Defined Contribution Plan : The Company’s contributions paid/payable for the year to Provident Fund and 

ESIC are charged to the statement of profit and loss for the year.      

  Defined Benefit Plan: The Company’s liabilities towards gratuity and leave encashment are determined 
using the projected unit credit method which considers each period of service as giving rise to an additional 
unit of benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation. Past services 
are recognised on a straight-line basis over the average period until the amended benefits become vested. 
Actuarial gain and losses are recognised immediately in the statement of profit and loss account as income or 
expense.	Obligation	is	measured	at	the	present	value	of	estimated	future	cash	flows	using	a	discounted	rate	
that is determined by reference to market yields at the balance sheet date on Government bonds where the 
currency and terms of the Government bonds are consistent with the currency and estimated terms of the 
defined benefit obligation.

 i) Impairment of Assets
  Fixed Assets are reviewed for impairment losses whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that 

the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is then recognised for the amount by which 
the carrying amount of the assets exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of an asset’s net selling 
price and value in use.       

  j) Accounting for Tax
  (a)  Current Tax is accounted on the basis of estimated taxable income for the current accounting year and 

in accordance with applicable tax rates and the provisions of Income Tax Act, 1961. 
  (b)  Deferred Tax resulting from “timing differences” between accounting and taxable profit for the period is 

accounted by using tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantially enacted as at the balance 
sheet date. 

   Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent there is reasonable certainty that the assets can be 
realized in future. Net deferred tax liability is arrived at after setting off deferred tax assets.
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3. SHARE CAPITAL   (` in Lacs)

 Particulars    As at   As at 
  31st March, 2016 31st March, 2015

A) Authorised Share Capital 
 i)  5,00,000 (previous year 5,00,000 of ` 10/- each)    50.00   50.00
   Equity Shares of ` 10/- each   

 ii)  1,27,50,000 Preference Shares (Previous year 1,27,50,000/-) of ` 100 each    12,750.00   12,750.00

          12,800.00   12,800.00
B)  Issued Subscribed and Paid-up Capital
 4,46,609 Equity Shares of ` 10/- each       
 (Previous year 4,46,609 Equity Shares of ` 10/- each)    44.66   44.66

 1,27,32,000 Preference Shares of ` 100/- each      12,732.00   12,732.00
  (Previous year 1,27,32,000 Preference Shares of ` 100/- each)       
       Total      12,776.66   12,776.66 
 

(C) Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period :  

 Particulars     31st March, 2016 31st March, 2015

 1)  Equity Shares
  Outstanding at the beginning of the Year    4,46,609   4,46,609
  Add : Issued During the year   -     -
  Outstanding at the end of the Year     4,46,609   4,46,609  

  2)  Preference Shares
  Outstanding at the beginning of the Year     1,27,32,000     -
  Add : Issued During the year    - 1,27,32,000   
  Outstanding at the end of the Year     1,27,32,000   1,27,32,000   

(D) Rights preferences and restrictions attached to Shares:-
 (1)  Rights preferences and restrictions attached to Equity Shares: 
  The company has only one class of Equity Shares having a par value of ̀  10/- per share. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote 

per share held. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing 
Annual General Meeting, except in case of interim dividend. 

  In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company after  distribution 
of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.

 (2)  Rights preferences and restrictions attached to 0% Non-Cumulative Non-Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares:
  The company has only one class of Preference Shares having a par value of  ̀  100/- per share. The dividend, if any, on preference 

shares proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to approval of shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. Each 
holder of Preference Share is entitled to one vote per share only on resolutions placed before the Company which directly 
affect the rights attached to the said shares. 

  In the event of liquidation of the company, preference share holders have a preferential right over equity shareholders to be 
repaid to the extent of paid-up capital & dividend in arrears, if any, on such shares. 

  There is lock-in period of 6 years from the date of allotment for the said preference shares.

(E)    Shares held by holding company, ultimate holding company and their subsidiaries

 Particulars     31st March, 2016 31st March, 2015

 1)  Equity Shares
  Elecon Engineering Company Limited, Holding Company      27.02   27.02
  2,70,170 equity shares of `10/- each fully paid up
  (Previous Rear 2,70,170 equity shares of `10/- each)

 2)   0% Non-Cumulative Non-Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares:
  Elecon Engineering Company Limited, Holding Company      12,732.00   12,732.00
  1,27,32,000 preference shares of ` 100/- each fully paid up
  (Previous Year 1,27,32,000 Preference Shares of ` 100/- each)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2016

(` in Lacs)
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(` in Lacs)

4. RESERVES AND SURPLUS   (` in Lacs)

    As at   As at 
  31st March, 2016 31st March, 2015 

(a)  General Reserve  
  As per Last Financial Statements     7,179.38   7,179.38 

  Add  : Transferred from Surplus in Statement of Profit and Loss     -     - 

  Closing Balance     7,179.38   7,179.38 

(b)  Surplus in Statement of Profit and Loss  

  As per Last Financial Statements     1,894.33   1,640.72 
  Add  :  Transferred during the year from Statement of Profit and Loss   (1,487.48)  253.61 
   Less  :  Appropriations       

    Proposed Dividend     -     -   
       Tax on Proposed Dividend    -     -   
       Transfer to General Reserve    -     -   

     Total Appropriations     -    - 

   Net Surplus in Statement of Profit and Loss      406.85   1,894.33 

  Total Reserves and Surplus     7,586.23   9,073.71

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2016

(F)    Details of Shareholders holding more than 5 percent Shares:-     

 Particulars     31st March, 2016 31st March, 2015

 1)  Equity Shares of ` 10 each fully paid up  (Previous year ` 10 each fully paid up)

  (a)   Elecon Engineering Company Limited   Nos.  2,70,170   2,70,170 
        % Holding  60.49% 60.49%

   (b) K B Investments Pvt. Ltd.    Nos. 50,651   50,651 
        % Holding  11.34% 11.34%

   (c) Bipra Investment & Trust Pvt. Ltd.   Nos.  45,017   45,017 
        % Holding  10.08% 10.08%

   (d) Emtici Engineering Limited   Nos.  29,954   29,954 
        % Holding  6.71% 6.71%

 2)  0% Non-Cumulative Non-Convertible Redeemable
  Preference Shares of ` 100/- each fully paid up (Previous year Nil)    
 

  (a)   Elecon Engineering Company Limited   Nos.   1,27,32,000   1,27,32,000   
        % Holding  100.00% 100.00%  

(G)  Aggregate number of preference shares allotted as fully paid up pursuant to contract without payment being received   
 in cash during the period of 5 years immediately preceding the date of Balance Sheet:-

 Particulars     31st March, 2016 31st March, 2015

  (1)  Preference Shares allotted as fully paid up      12,732.00   12,732.00  

(` in Lacs)
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 5. LONG-TERM BORROWINGS

         As at   As at 
         31st March, 2016 31st March, 2015

 Secured        

  (a)  Term loans        

    From banks        - 246.14

             - 246.14

(` in Lacs)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2016

 (b)  Terms of repayment of term loans and other loans     

  1. Terms Loans

  Lender   31st March, 2016   31st March, 2015  Terms of Repayment 

   (i)   Indusind Bank Ltd.  - 246.14  Repayable in equated quarterly instalments of 
       ` 123.07 Lacs starting from November 2012.
          

   - 246.14

(` in Lacs)

(` in Lacs)6.   DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES / (ASSETS) (NET)

    As at   As at 
  31st March, 2016 31st March, 2015

 (a)  Deferred Tax Liabilities
   In respect of difference between book & Tax W. D. V.      323.45   397.79 

  (b) Deferred Tax Assets
   In respect of disallowance under the Income Tax Act.     (777.97)  (63.90)

  Net Deferred Tax Liability/(Assets)        (454.52)  333.89

(` in Lacs)7.   OTHER LONG TERM LIABILITIES

    As at   As at 
  31st March, 2016 31st March, 2015

  (a)   Trade payables    1,741.08   1,253.03 

  (b)   Deposits     -     5.46 

  (c)   Advance from Customers    5,451.90   5,909.35 

               7,192.98   7,167.84 

(` in Lacs)8.  LONG-TERM PROVISIONS     

    As at   As at 
  31st March, 2016 31st March, 2015

  (a)  Provision for employee benefits:       
  Provision for Gratuity    -     -   

     Provision for Leave Encashment     146.34   133.57 

            146.34   133.57
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2016

(` in Lacs)9.   SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS    

    As at   As at 
  31st March, 2016 31st March, 2015

 Secured        
(a)  Loans repayable on demand:       
 Working Capital Loans

   -  From banks        18,207.88   15,602.81 

 Unsecured        
(a)   Other Loans       
 -  From others       3,255.00   1,032.00

           21,462.88   16,634.81

(i) Nature of Securities {(a) Loans repayable on demand}     

 Working Capital Loans from banks (secured) granted by Consortium of Banks consisting of State Bank of India (As Lead Bank), Bank of 
Baroda, Export Import Bank of India, HDFC Bank Ltd., IDBI Bank Ltd., Axis Bank Limited, Standard Chartered Bank & Indusind Bank Limited 
are secured by first pari passu hypothecation charge over of movable plant and machinery and assets of the Company excluding certain 
assets specifically / exclusively charged to other banks/ financial institutions but including the whole of the Company’s Currents Assets, 
Inventories, Receivables and Book Debts ranking pari passu inter se in respect of working capital facilities  and guarantees issued by them 
in favour of various clients of the Company. 

 Further, the working capital facilities are secured by Corporate Guarantee of Elecon Engineering Company Limited, Prayas Engineering 
Limited & Emtici Engineering Limited.

(` in Lacs)10.  OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES    

    As at   As at 
  31st March, 2016 31st March, 2015

 (a)   Current maturities of        
  Term Loan (Secured)      -     492.29

  (b)   Advance from Customers    7,590.70   10,754.25 
  (c)   Interest accrued but not due on borrowings    63.89   48.58 
  (d)   Other Payables     12,459.17   12,578.70 
  (e)   Statutory & Other liabilities     264.50   279.22 
  (f )   Deposits     16.15   11.23 
  (g)   Payable as per Scheme of Arrangement     -     -      

        20,394.41   24,164.27

(` in Lacs)11. SHORT-TERM PROVISIONS    

    As at   As at 
  31st March, 2016 31st March, 2015

  (a)  Provision for employee benefits:     

    Provision for Gratuity    -     -   

    Provision for Leave Encashment    23.28   21.97 

    Others    -     -   

 (b) Proposed Dividend     -     -   

 (c) Dividend Tax on Proposed Dividend   -     -
          23.28   21.97
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13.  LONG-TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES     (` in Lacs)

      As at   As at
    31st March, 2016 31st March, 2015 

A. Unsecured, Considered Good 
  (a)  Deposits   490.96   524.67 
 (b) Advances recoverable in Cash or Kind  -     0.47 
 (c) Advance Payment of Tax (net of provision for taxation)   591.77   575.93 
 (d) MAT Credit Entitlement   73.35   73.35 

    Total    1,156.08   1,174.42

15.  INVENTORIES      (` in Lacs)

      As at   As at
    31st March, 2016 31st March, 2015 

 At lower of cost or net realisable value      

 (a)  Raw Materials   3,259.29   3,325.16 
 (b)  Raw Materials-in-Transit    -     -   
 (c)   Semi-Finished Goods    8,850.46   8,473.70 
 (d)  Finished Goods    -     -   
 (e)   Stores and Spares    269.68   281.74

        12,379.43   12,080.60

16.  TRADE RECEIVABLES       (` in Lacs)

      As at   As at
    31st March, 2016 31st March, 2015 

 Unsecured, Considered Good :      
  (a)   Outstanding for a period exceeding six month from the Due date    28,998.77   28,298.66 
 (b)   Others   37,863.41   35,579.18  

        66,862.18   63,877.84

14.  OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS     (` in Lacs)

      As at   As at
    31st March, 2016 31st March, 2015 

 Unsecured, Considered Good 

 (a) Long Term Trade Receivables    6,433.80   5,295.66 

          6,433.80   5,295.66 
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17. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS   (` in Lacs)

      As at   As at
    31st March, 2016 31st March, 2015 

 Cash and Cash Equivalent
  (a)  Balance with Banks :

   In Current Account    13.46   195.76 

  Deposit with original maturity of less than 3 months   10.76   115.13 

   Unpaid Dividend Bank Account   -     -   

 (b)   Cash on hand    0.52   0.54

          24.74   311.43

19.  OTHER CURRENT ASSETS     (` in Lacs)

      As at   As at
    31st March, 2016 31st March, 2015 

 Other Receivables 

  - From Others     780.01   146.77

       780.01  146.77

18.  SHORT-TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES      (` in Lacs)

      As at   As at
    31st March, 2016 31st March, 2015 

 Unsecured, Considered Good 

  (a)  Advances Recoverable in Cash/Kind or for value to be received  6,419.12   6,206.34 

  (b)  Balance with Collector of Custom, Port Trust, Excise etc.   1,224.31   1,021.46 

  (c)  Prepaid Expenses   507.02   612.89 

  (d)  Gratuity paid in Advance   3.68   27.03

           8,154.13   7,867.72  

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2016

20.  REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS (` in Lacs)

      Year ended   Year ended
    31st March, 2016 31st March, 2015 

  (a)  Sale of Products      

   Material Handling Equipments   39,719.65   42,181.19 
   Export Sales    1,134.57   1,823.05 

         40,854.22   44,004.24
   (b)  Sale of Services      

    Erection Charges     6,504.51   6,864.23
   
  (c)  Other operating revenues      
   Scrap Sales    552.53   869.81 
    Machinery Hire Charges   13.32   -   
    Duty Drawback    29.77   4.37 

            595.62   874.18

        47,954.35   51,742.65
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21. OTHER INCOME    (` in Lacs)

      Year ended   Year ended
    31st March, 2016 31st March, 2015 

 (a)   Interest Income    62.04   9.04 
 (b)   Profit/(Loss) on Sales of Assets (Net of Losses)   43.06   1.79 
  (c)   Rent Income    16.44   15.66 
  (d)   Miscellaneous Income     129.35   110.54 
  (e)   Profit on account of Exchange Variation    -     134.56 

            250.89   271.59

22.  COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED     (` in Lacs)

      Year ended   Year ended
    31st March, 2016 31st March, 2015 

  Raw Materials Consumed       26,162.54   27,778.30   

          26,162.54   27,778.30  

 a. Raw Materials Consumed in broad heads  :     
   Iron & Steel   6,427.33   8,888.65 
   Forgings   847.89   743.16 
  Bearings   949.38   1,158.71 
  Electricals   3,618.03   2,291.28 
  Castings   1,230.64   1,123.64 
  Hydraulic    2,151.36   4,234.63 
  Gear & Coupling    787.92   1,006.56  
   Other Components   10,149.99   8,331.67 

          26,162.54   27,778.30   

 b. Value of Indigenous and Imported Raw Materials Consumed during the year :        

  Imported  Value    474.84   388.24 
     Percentage   1.81% 1.40%

  Indigenous  Value        25,687.71   27,390.06 
     Percentage  98.19% 98.60%

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2016

23. CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS, WORK-IN-PROGRESS AND  STOCK-IN-TRADE  
 (` in Lacs)

      Year ended   Year ended
    31st March, 2016 31st March, 2015 

 (a)   Opening Stock :      

   Semi-finished Goods (WIP)     8,473.70   10,112.00   

    Finished Goods   -     -   

         8,473.70   10,112.00   

 (b)   Closing Stock :      

   Semi-finished Goods (WIP)      8,850.46   8,473.70

   Finished Goods   -   -   

         8,850.46   8,473.70

        (376.76)  1,638.30



Elecon EPC Projects Limited  | 25th Annual Report 2015 - 16 63

24.  MANUFACTURING EXPENSES AND ERECTION CHARGES    (` in Lacs)

      Year ended   Year ended
    31st March, 2016 31st March, 2015 

 (a)   Stores, Tools and Spares Consumed    585.87   528.67 
 (b)   Sub-Contracting Charges    8,529.83   6,713.11 
  (c)   Power and Fuel    399.84   341.18 
 (d)  Erection and other charges    2,231.72   1,501.67 
 (e)   Other manufacturing expenses    438.42   294.28 

          12,185.68   9,378.91 

  a.  Value of Indigenous and Imported Stores, Tools and Spares Consumed during the year :         

  Imported  Value    1.81   5.44 
    Percentage   0.31% 1.03%

  Indigenous  Value    584.06   523.23
    Percentage  99.69% 98.97%

25.  EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE      (` in Lacs)

      Year ended   Year ended
    31st March, 2016 31st March, 2015 

 (a)   Salaries and Wages    2,782.94   2,515.52 

 (b)   Contribution to Provident Fund   126.17   119.54 

 (c)   Employees’ Welfare Expenses   124.80   97.44 

 (d)  Employees’ Retirement Benefits    42.09   65.78 

          3,076.00   2,798.28

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2016

26.  FINANCE COST       (` in Lacs)

      Year ended   Year ended
    31st March, 2016 31st March, 2015 

 (a)   Interest Expense   2,589.40   2,761.86 

 (b)   Other Borrowing Cost    112.43   106.18 

 (c)   Applicable Net Gain / Loss on Foreign Currency    -     -   
  Transaction / Translation     2,701.83   2,868.04 
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27. OTHER EXPENSES   (` in Lacs)

      Year ended   Year ended
    31st March, 2016 31st March, 2015 

  (a)  Technical Know how and Design Fees    268.76   360.77 
 (b)  Rent    637.54   792.29 
 (c)  Computer Software Charges   242.90   216.11 
 (d) Rates & Taxes    402.70   351.06 
 (e) Excise Duty (Excluding Duty Recovered from Customers)  -     -  
 (f )  Repairs and Maintenance :      
    Buildings    47.18   61.90 
    Machineries   384.61   322.23 
    Others    65.94   70.53 
  (g)   Insurance (net of recoveries)   74.97   94.48 
  (h)   Travelling Expenses    299.21   306.86 
  (i)   Bank Charges    660.73   586.62 
  (j)   Directors’ Fees   5.31   3.40 
  (k)   Commission to Non Executive Directors    - -   
  (l)   Packing, Forwarding & Distribution Expenses (Net of Recoveries)   351.80   226.30 
  (m)   Commission & Brokerage    932.96   1,394.51 
  (n)   Bad Debts Written Off    -     75.00 
  (o)   Liquidated Damages    6.70   75.00 
  (p)   Advertisements & Sales Promotion Expenses    52.57   22.41 
  (q)   Payment to Auditors    20.21   16.13 
  (r)   Donations   -     -   
  (s)   Expenditure on Corporate Social Responsibility    4.25   2.05 
  (t)   Lease Rentals    73.71   67.19 
  (u)   Royalty Paid    -     151.02 
  (v)   Technical Inspection Consultancy Fees    -     -   
  (w)   Other Professional Consultancy Fees    479.89   417.78 
  (x)   General Administrative Charges    581.32   439.78 
  (y)   (Profit) / Loss on account of Exchange Variation    84.64   -   

              5,677.90   6,053.42
a. Auditors’ Remuneration   

 Auditors’ remuneration includes the following amounts paid or adjusted as paid to them during the year : 
 (i) As Auditors    14.27   11.83 
 (ii) For Taxation Matters   2.25   1.86 
 (iii) for Company Law Matters   -     -   
 (iv) for Management Services   3.69   -   
 (v) For Other Services   -     2.44 
 (vi) Re-imbursement of Expenses   -     -   
         20.21   16.13 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2016
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28.  CONTIGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS     
 (to the extent not provided for)   (` in Lacs)

      As at   As at
    31st March, 2016 31st March, 2015 

(a)  Contingent liabilities:
 Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debt    

 (i) Disputed Excise Duty & Service Tax against Demand Notices received  5,466.75  5,380.65 
 (ii) Disputed Sales Tax/Works Contract Tax  1,169.20  1,155.01 
 (iii) Disputed Income Tax Demand-Disputed by Company   0.26  -   
 (iv) Service Tax disputed & paid under Protest  332.99  241.92 
 (v) Sales Bills Discounted under LC with Banks   220.70  514.00 

 (vi) In respect of arbitration proceeding as directed by Honorable Gujarat  152.36  154.19 
  High Court in response to an application made by one of the contractor 
  of the company for ` 206.07 Lacs. However the company has 
  made a counter claim of ` 200.00 Lacs  with the same arbitrator in 
  response and as per the books of account ` 51.88 Lacs is due to him.      

 (vii) The company has provided Corporate Guarantee to SBI Consortium to    44,125.00 44,125.00
  the tune of ` 44,125.00 Lacs as a security for repayment of Financial 
  the facility availed by Elecon Engineering Company Limited, 
  a holding company.

 (viii) Bonus for Financial Year 2014-15  65.12   -  

 Guarantees      

 (i) Guarantees issued by Company’s Bankers     46,087.78  50,301.85  

(b)  Commitments:  
 (i) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account   136.02   -   
  and not provided for

29.  RETIREMENT BENEFITS   
 i)   The Gratuity liability & liability in respect of Leave Encashment is determined based on the Actuarial Valuation done by Actuary as at Balance 

Sheet date in context of the Revised AS-15 issued by the ICAI, as follows:-

    Gratuity Leave Encashment
    As at  As at   As at  As at 
     31st March, 2016  31st March, 2015 31st March, 2016 31st March, 2015

 Expense recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss  :-
 Current Service Cost  33.75  30.07   19.81  16.83 
 Interest Cost (2.14)  (1.77)  12.32  13.55 
 Employer Contribution -     -    -    -  
 Expected Return on Plan Assets -    -     -    -
 Net Actuarial (Gains) / Losses 8.91  33.19   25.31  30.37 
 Past Service Cost  -    -     -    -   
 Settlement Cost  -     -     -    -   

    Total Expenses     40.52  61.49   57.44  60.75 

 Net Asset / (Liability) recognized in the Balance Sheet  : -     
 Present value of Defined Benefit Obligation  608.88  604.64   169.63  155.54 
 Fair value of plan assets  612.56   631.67   -    -   

 Funded status [Surplus / (Deficit)]    3.68  27.03   (169.63) (155.54)   
 Net asset / (liability)   3.68   27.03   (169.63)  (155.54)
  Current Liability  3.68   27.03   (23.28)  (21.97)
  Non Current Liability  -     -     (146.34)  (133.57)

Change in Obligation during the Year :-
 Present value of Defined Benefit Obligation at 604.64   572.72   155.53   145.27 
 beginning of the year      
 Current Service Cost 33.75   30.07   19.81   16.83 
 Interest Cost 47.89   53.43   12.32   13.55 
 Settlement Cost -     -     -     -   
 Past Service Cost -     -     -     -   

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2016
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 Change in Assets during the Year :-
 Plan assets at the beginning of the year 631.67  634.50 
 Settlements     
 Expected return on plan assets 50.03   55.20 
 Contributions by Employer 18.86   26.74 
 Assets Transfer in from other company  0.84   -   
 Assets Transfer out to other company  (2.54)  -   
 Actual benefits paid (86.87)  (79.26)
 Actuarial (Gains) / Losses 0.57   (5.51)
 Plan assets at the end of the year 612.56   631.67 

 Expected contribution during the year - - 

 Actuarial Assumptions:
 Discount Rate 7.86% 7.92% 7.86% 7.92%
 Expected rate of return on plan assets 7.86% 7.92% - -
 Mortality pre retirement -   -  - - 
 Turnover rate 2.00% 2.00% 2.00% 2.00%
 Rate of escalation in salary (p.a.) 6.50% 6.50% 6.50% 6.50%

    Gratuity Leave encashment

    As at  As at   As at  As at 
     31st March, 2016  31st March, 2015 31st March, 2016 31st March, 2015

	 	 a.			 The	rate	of	escalation	in	Salary	(p.a.)	considered	in	actuarial	valuation	is	worked	out	after	taking	into	account	inflation,	
seniority, promotion and other relevant factors such as supply and demand in the employment market.  Mortality rates are 
obtained from the relevant data of Life Insurance Corporation of India.

  b.  The “Assets” for the gratuity ̀  3.68 Lacs (previous year liability of ̀  27.03 Lacs) as shown in the balance sheet is after adjusting 
the Fair value of plan assets (Invested with LIC/SBI) as at March 31, 2016 of ` 612.55 Lacs (Previous Year ` 631.67 Lacs).  

 ii)  The Company’s contributions paid/payable for the year to Provident Fund is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss for the 
year of ` 55.98 Lacs (Previous Year ` 62.20 Lacs). 

29.  RETIREMENT BENEFITS  (Contd...)

30.  SEGMENT INFORMATION

 The Company has only one reportable segment i.e. “Material Handling Equipment” and hence disclosures requirement of Accounting 
Standard 17 (AS 17 - Segment Reporting) notified in Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 are not given.

31. EARNING PER SHARE  (` in Lacs, except per share data)

      As at   As at
    31st March, 2016 31st March, 2015 

Basic & Diluted Earning Per Share (EPS) computed in accordance with Accounting Standard (AS) 20 “ Earning Per Share” 
(Before and after extraordinary items)   

 a) Profit for Basic & Diluted Earning Per Share as per Statement of Profit and Loss (1,487.48) 253.61 
 b) Weighted average number of equity shares  4,46,609   4,46,609 
 c) Earning Per Share (Basic & Diluted) (333.06)  56.79  
 d) Face Value per Share 10.00   10.00

(` in Lacs)

 Employer Contributions -     -     -     -   
 Liability Transferred in  -     -     -     -
 Actuarial (Gains) / Losses 9.47   27.67   25.31   30.37 
 Benefits Payments (86.87)  (79.26)  (43.34)  (50.48)

 Present value of Defined Benefit Obligation at  608.88   604.64   169.63   155.54
 the end of the year 
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32.  RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS  
 Related Party Disclosures as required by Accounting Standard (AS) 18 are given below:

A)  Name of the related parties and nature of relationships :     

 a) Holding Company 
  (i) Elecon Engineering Company Limited

 b) Fellow Subsidiaries 
  (i) Elecon Middle East FZCO   
  (ii) Elecon Singapore Pte. Limited   
  (iii) Elecon Transmission International Limited, Mauritius   
  (iv) Benzler Systems AB, Sweden   
  (v) Radicon Transmission UK Limited, U.K.   
  (vi) AB Benzler, Sweden   
  (vii) Elecon USA Transmission Limited, USA   
  (viii) Benzler Transmission A.S., Denmark   
  (ix) Benzler Antriebstechnik GmbH, Germany   
  (x) Benzler TBA B.V., Netherlands   
  (xi) Benzler Antriebstechnik Gesmbh, Austria   
  (xii) OY Benzler AB, Finland   
  (xiii) Benzler SDN BDH Malaysia   
  (xiv) Benzler Italia s.r.l.  

 c) Individual having control/ significant influence   
  (i) Shri Prashant C. Amin

B)  Nature of Transactions :  (` in Lacs)

      As at   As at
    31st March, 2016 31st March, 2015 

 Purchase of Material / fin. Goods
  (i)  Elecon Engineering Company Limited  2,735.75   2,738.01 
  (ii)  Others   -     - 

 Job work Income from other Co.   
  (i)  Elecon Engineering Company Limited   156.28   95.48 
  (ii)  Others   -     -    

 Job work Expenses to other Co.
  (i)  Elecon Engineering Company Limited   77.22   42.24 
  (ii)  Others   -     - 

 Sale of Fin. Goods/Consumable Stores
  (i)  Elecon Engineering Company Limited  618.79   552.05 
  (ii)  Elecon Singapore PTE Ltd.  11.50   194.08 
  (iii)  Elecon Middle East FZCO   725.21   638.99 
  (iv) Others  - -

 Sale of Fixed Assets
  (i)  Elecon Engineering Company Limited       719.98   192.75

 Expenses Charged to other Co.
  (i)  Elecon Engineering Company Limited   13.21   12.44   

 Exp. Charged by other Co.  
  (i)  Elecon Engineering Company Limited     699.40   871.21
  (ii) Others  11.78 - 

 Sales Commission  
  (i)  Elecon Middle East FZCO   6.48   12.44 
  (ii)  Elecon Singapore Pte. Limited   101.22   104.36

 Interest Paid  
  (i)  Elecon Engineering Company Limited   225.40 - 
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C)  Balance at Year End:  (` in Lacs)

      As at   As at
    31st March, 2016 31st March, 2015 

 (i) Outstanding Payables: 
  (a) Holding Company     

   Elecon Engineering Company Limited    24,523.06   18,787.88

  (b) Fellow Subsidiaries     
   (i) Elecon Middle East FZCO   119.76   14.69   
   (ii) Elecon Singapore Pte. Limited    111.77   107.38

 (ii)  Outstanding Receivables:     
  (a) Holding Company     
   (i) Elecon Engineering Company Limited     799.56   94.87

  (b) Fellow Subsidiaries     
   (i) Elecon Middle East FZCO  (32.61) 338.50
   (ii) Elecon Singapore Pte. Limited  44.73 85.89

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2016

33.  DISCLOSURES SPECIFIED BY THE MSMED ACT   
 The company has not received information from vendors regarding their status under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 

Development Act, 2006 and hence, disclosure relating to amounts unpaid as at the year end together with interest paid/payable 
under this Act could not been given.

34.  CIF VALUE OF IMPORTS      (` in Lacs)

      Year ended   Year ended
    31st March, 2016 31st March, 2015 

 a) Raw Material   1,018.98   1,355.06 
 b) Stores and Spares    6.79   9.57 
 c) Capital Goods   -    -

35.  EXPENDITURE IN FOREIGN CURRENCY (ACCRUAL BASIS)      (` in Lacs)

      Year ended   Year ended
    31st March, 2016 31st March, 2015 

 a) Legal and Professional fees  1.52   -   

 b) Technical Consultancy Fees   110.62   420.55 

 c) Others  120.34   211.32

 Slump sale of MHE Undertaking pursuant to Scheme of Arrangement
 Coverted to preference share capital/repaid     
  (i)  Elecon Engineering Company Limited  - 12,732.44

 Deposit / Loan / Advances received      
  (i)  Elecon Engineering Company Limited  2,600.00 -
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37.  PROPOSED DIVIDEND     
 The Board of Directors have proposed equity dividend of ` Nil (Previous Year ` Nil) per equity share of ` 10.00 each. 

 The aggregate amount of equity dividend proposed to be distributed is ̀  Nil (Previous Year ̀  Nil) Including Dividend Distribution Tax 
of ` Nil (Previous year ` Nil).    

38.  Previous year’s figures have been regrouped/reclassified wherever necessary to correspond with the current year’s classification/
disclosure.

39.  Note 1 to 37 form an integral part of the financial statements.

Signature to Balance Sheet & Statement of Profit & Loss and Note 1 to 37.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2016

As per our report of even date attached    

For and on behalf of  For and on behalf of the Board of Directors,
THACKER BUTALA DESAI    
Chartered Accountants   
 P. M. Patel  P. C. Amin
 Director   Director 
M. T. Desai DIN : 00012138  DIN : 01056652 
Partner 
M. No. 030911 Rajat Jain Bharti Isarani
Firm Regi. No. 110864W Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place : Vallabh Vidyanagar Place : Vallabh Vidyanagar
Date : 27-04-2016 Date : 26-04-2016

36.  EARNINGS IN FOREIGN EXCHANGE    (` in Lacs)

      As at   As at
    31st March, 2016 31st March, 2015 

 a) Export of goods calculated on F.O.B. basis       
  Material Handling Equipments         1,166.64   1,754.81

 b) Royalty, know-how, professional and consultation fees  -    -   

 c) Service Income   -     - 
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NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT the 25th Annual General 
Meeting of members of Elecon EPC Projects Limited will be 
held at the Registered Office of the Company at C/o Elecon 
Engineering Company Limited, Anand-Sojitra Road, Vallabh 
Vidyanagar 388 120 on Tuesday, the 26th day of July, 2016 
at 12.15 p.m. to transact following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Balance 
Sheet as at 31st March 2016, Statement of Profit 
& Loss for the year ended on that date and Cash 
Flow Statements alongwith the Report of Board of 
Directors and Auditors thereon.

2. To appoint a Director in place of Shri Pradip M. Patel 
(holding DIN- 00012138), who retires by rotation and 
being eligible, offers himself for re–appointment.

3. To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without 
modifications, following resolution as an Ordinary 
Resolution:

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of 
Sections 139, 142 and other applicable provisions, if 
any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (the ‘Act’) read with 
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (the 
‘Rules’) including any statutory modification(s) or re-
enactment thereof for the time being in force, the 
appointment of M/s Thacker Butala Desai, Chartered 
Accountants, (Firm Regn. No. 110864W) as Auditors 
of the Company to hold office from the conclusion 
of this 25th Annual General Meeting (AGM) till the 
conclusion of the 26th Annual General Meeting of 
the Company to be held in the year 2017 to examine 
and audit the accounts of the Company at such 
remuneration plus Service tax at the applicable 
rate, from time to time, plus travelling and out-of- 
pocket expenses incurred by them for the purpose 
of audit of the Company’s accounts, exclusive of any 
remuneration, fees or charges payable to them for 
rendering any other services that may be rendered 
by them to the Company from time to time other 
than in the capacity of Auditors, as may be fixed by 
the Board of Directors of the Company be and is 
hereby ratified & confirmed.”

4. To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or 
without modification(s), following Resolution as an 
Ordinary Resolution:

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of 
Sections 139, 142 and other applicable provisions, if 
any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (the ‘Act’) read with 
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (the 
‘Rules’) including any statutory modification(s) or 
re-enactment thereof for the time being in force, 

the appointment of M/s BSR & Co. LLP, Chartered 
Accountants (Firm Registration No. 101248W/W-
100022), as  Joint Statutory Auditors of the Company 
to hold the office for a period of five years from 
the conclusion of this 25th Annual General Meeting 
(‘AGM’) until the conclusion of the 30th Annual 
General Meeting of the Company, to examine 
and audit the accounts of the Company at such 
remuneration plus Service tax at the applicable 
rate, from time to time, plus travelling and out-of- 
pocket expenses incurred by them for the purpose 
of audit of the Company’s accounts, exclusive of any 
remuneration, fees or charges payable to them for 
rendering any other services that may be rendered 
by them to the Company from time to time other 
than in the capacity of Auditors, as may be fixed by 
the Board of Directors of the Company be and is 
hereby approved.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

5. To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or 
without modification(s), following Resolution as an 
Ordinary Resolution:

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of 
Sections 149, 150, 152 and any other applicable 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) 
and the Companies (Appointment and Qualification 
of Directors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory 
modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the 
time being in force) read with Schedule IV to the 
Companies Act, 2013, Shri Jal Ratanshaw Patel 
(holding DIN: 00065021), who was appointed by 
the Board of Directors as an Additional Director 
pursuant to Section 161 of the Act of the Company 
with effect from 26th April, 2016, and who holds 
office as such upto the date of this Annual General 
Meeting and who has submitted a declaration that 
he meets the criteria for independence as provided 
in Section 149(6) of the Act and in respect of whom 
the Company has received a notice in writing 
under Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013 
from the member proposing his candidature for 
the office of Director, be and is hereby appointed 
as an Independent Director of the Company to 
hold office for five consecutive years from the date 
of this Annual General Meeting and shall not be 
retire by rotation hereinafter in accordance with the 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.”

6. To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or 
without modification(s), following Resolution as an 
Ordinary Resolution:

NOTICE
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 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of 
Section 148 and all other applicable provisions of 
the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Audit 
and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory 
modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the time 
being in force), the Cost Auditors appointed by the 
Board of Directors of the Company, to conduct the 
audit of the cost records of the Company for the 
financial year ending on 31st March, 2017, be paid the 
remuneration as set out in the Statement annexed to 
the Notice convening this Meeting.

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors 
of the Company be and is hereby authorized to 

do all such acts and take all such steps as may be 
necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this 
resolution.”

 By Order of Board of Directors,

Bharti Isarani
Company Secretary

Registered Office:
C/o Elecon Engineering Co. Ltd.
Anand-Sojitra Road,
Vallabh Vidyanagar 388 120.
Gujarat.
   
Date  : 27th April, 2016
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1. Explanatory Statement as required under Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 is annexed hereto.

2. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND 
VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF AND A PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER. A person can act as proxy on behalf of members 
not exceeding 50 (fifty) and holding in the aggregate not more than 10 (ten) percent of the total share capital of the 
Company.

 The instruments of proxy in order to be effective, should be deposited at the registered office of the Company, 
duly completed and signed, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the meeting. A proxy form is 
sent herewith. Proxies submitted on behalf of the Companies, Societies etc., must be supported by an appropriate 
resolution/authority, as applicable.

3. All documents referred to in the Notice or in the accompanying Statement are available for inspection by members 
on all working days, except Sundays and public holidays, between 10.00 A.M. to 1.00 P.M. prior to the date of the 
Annual General Meeting and will also be available for inspection at the meeting.

4. Shareholders seeking any information with regard to accounts are requested to write to the Company at least 10 days 
before the meeting so as to enable the management to keep the information ready.

5. The members are requested to bring their copy of Annual Report at the meeting as no arrangement has been made 
to distribute additional copies available as a measure of economy.

6. In case of joint holders attending the meeting, only such joint holder who is higher in the order of names will be 
entitled to vote.

7. In terms of the requirements of the Secretarial Standards-2 on “General Meetings” issued by the Institute of the 
Company Secretaries of India and approved & notified by the Central Government, Route Map for the location of the 
aforesaid meeting is enclosed.

 By Order of Board of Directors,

Bharti Isarani
Company Secretary

Registered Office:
C/o Elecon Engineering Co. Ltd.
Anand-Sojitra Road, 
Vallabh Vidyanagar 388 120.
Gujarat.
   
Date  : 27th April, 2016

NOTES
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102(1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

ITEM NO. 5

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and applicable Rules made thereunder, the 
Company had, appointed Shri Jal Patel (holding DIN: 00065021) as an Additional Director (Independent Director) w.e.f. 26th 

April, 2016. In terms of Sections 149, 152 and 161 of the Act, read with the relevant Rules, he holds office as an Additional 
Director upto the date of the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible, offers himself for appointment as a Director. 

The Company has received a notice in writing from a member along with the deposit of requisite amount under Section 160 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 proposing the candidature of Shri Jal Patel as a Non-Executive Independent Director of the Company. 

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee has recommended and the Board has approved the appointment of Shri Jal Patel 
as an Independent Director as per his letter of appointment for a period of five years from the ensuing Annual General Meeting. 

Shri Jal Patel has given a declaration to the Board that he meets the criteria of independence as provided under Section 
149(6) of the Act. In the opinion of the Board, he fulfills the conditions specified in the Act and the Rules framed thereunder 
for appointment as an Independent Director and he is independent of the Management. 

In compliance with the provisions of Section 149 read with Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013, his appointment as a 
Non-Executive Independent Director is now being placed before the Members for their approval. 

The terms and conditions of the appointment of Shri Jal Patel as an Independent Director of the Company shall be opened 
for inspection by the Members at the Registered Office of the Company during normal business hours on any working day, 
excluding Sundays. 

He does not hold by himself or for any other person on a beneficial basis, any shares in the Company.

Except Shri Jal Patel, being an appointee, none of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their 
relatives is concerned or interested, financial or otherwise, in the resolution set out at Item No. 5. 

A brief profile of Shri Jal Patel is attached to the notice.

Item No. 6
The Board, on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, has approved the appointment and remuneration of the Cost 
Auditors to conduct the audit of the cost records of the Company for the financial year ending on 31st March, 2017 as per 
following details: 

In accordance with the provisions of Section 148 of the Act read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the 
remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors has to be ratified by the shareholders of the Company. 

Accordingly, consent of the members is sought for passing an Ordinary Resolution.

By Order of Board of Directors,

Bharti Isarani
Company Secretary

Registered Office:
C/o Elecon Engineering Co. Ltd.
Anand-Sojitra Road, 
Vallabh Vidyanagar 388 120.
Gujarat.
  
Date  : 27th April, 2016

Sr. No. Name of Cost Auditor Industry Audit Fees (Rs.)

 1. Y. S. Thakar & Co. Engineering 50,000/-  Plus Govt. Levies/
    Taxes as applicable and 
    out of pocket expenses at actual.
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Details of the Directors seeking appointment/re-appointment at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting

(Pursuant to Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement)

Name of Director

Date of Birth

Date of Appointment

Expertise in specific 
Functional areas

Shri Pradip M. Patel 

05.11.1947

18.05.2012  

Associated with the Bearing Industry for 
over three decades.
Joined ABC Bearings Limited on 7th 
September, 1973.
Director in ABC Bearings Limited since 
1st August, 1986 & Managing Director 
since 1st August, 1991.

M.B.A. (U.S.A.)

-  Aakaaish Investments Private Limited
- ABC Bearings Limited
- Eimco Elecon (I) Limited
- Elecon Engineering Company Limited
- Power Build Private Limited
- NSK-ABC Bearings Private Limited
- Emtici Engineering Limited
- Elecon Hydraulics Private Limited
- Manoway Investments Pvt. Ltd
- Ziwani Properties Pvt. Ltd
- Mipco Investments Pvt. Ltd
- Maple Investments Co. Pvt. Ltd.
- Emsons Leasing Co. Pvt. Ltd
- Taveta Properties  Pvt. Ltd
- Elecon EPC Projects Limited.
- Tech Elecon Private Limited

Shri Jal R. Patel

17.09.1937

26.04.2016

Senior Chartered Accountant and Company Secretary with 
Legal, Accounting, Finance & Audit background.

He had been Chairman of FAG Bearings India Ltd.

B.Com, ACA, ACS

- Elecon Engineering Company Limited
-  Styrolution ABS (India) Ltd.
- Munjal Auto Industries Limited
- ABC Bearings Limited
- Jewel Consumer Care Private Limited
- Gujarat Gas Limited

Qualifications

List of Public/Private 
Companies in which 
Directorship held as on 
31st March, 2016. 

Chairman/Member of 
the Committees of the 
Public Companies on 
which he is a Director as 
on 31st March 2016.

Elecon Engineering Company Limited
- Audit Committee – Member
- Stakeholders Relationship Committee 
 -  Member

ABC Bearings Limited
- Stakeholders Relationship Committee 
 -  Member

Eimco Elecon (India)Limited
- Audit Committee – Member
- Stakeholders Relationship Committee 
 -  Member

Gujarat Gas Limited 
- Audit Committee – Chairman
- Stakeholders Relationship Committee – Member

ABC Bearing Limited
- Audit Committee – Chairman

Styrolution ABS (India) Limited
- Audit Committee – Member
- Stakeholders Relationship Committee – Chairman

Elecon Engineering Company Limited
- Audit Committee – Chairman
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Route map to the venue of the AGM

ELECON EPC PROJECTS 
LIMITED
Anand-Sojitra Road,
Vallabh Vidyanagar - 388120.
Gujarat.
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